Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

Notice of Board Meeting

Date: December 26, 2019

To: Chairman David Converse
John Jennings
Robert Aliasso
W. Edward Walldroff
Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L Huillier

From: Donald C. Alexander

Re: Notice of Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency will hold their Board Meeting on
Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue,
Watertown, NY.

Please confirm your attendance with Peggy Sampson pssampson@jcida.com at your earliest
convenience.

pss
©3 David Zembiec
Lyle Eaton
Joseph Russell, Esq.
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

REVISED BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, January 9, 2020 - 8:30 a.m.
L Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance
HI.  Privilege of the Floor
IV.  Minutes of the Meeting of December 5,2019
V. Treasurer’s Report — as of December 31,2019
VI. Committee Reports

VII. Unfinished Business

Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Comptroller Audit
New York State Senate Final Investigative Report: Public Authorities in NYS

Discussions with YMCA and 146 Arsenal Street Building

b

VIII. New Business
1. Board Reappointments

IX. Counsel

1. Consider Authorizing Resolution Number 01.09.2020.01 for OYA NYS RTE 12
LLC, OYA Blanchard Road LLC, OYA Blanchard Road 2, LLC, and OYA
Great Lakes Seaway LLC (Schedules revised)

2. Consider Amendment Resolution Number 01.09.2020.02 for MDD, LI.C (Oswego

Beverage Company LLC)

X. Adjournment



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency \ 45 ¥ »
Board Meeting Minutes ' e B
December 5, 2019

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency held their board meeting on Thursday, December
5, 2019 in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY.

Present: David Converse, Chair, John Jennings, Paul Warneck, Robert E. Aliasso, Jr., W. Edward
Walldroff, William Johnson

Also Present: Joseph Russell, Esq., Christine Powers, Kent Burto, Larry Richardson, William Ralston,
Denise Young, Keith Caughlin, Marcus Wolf and Craig Fox from the Watertown Daily Times

Staff Present: Donald Alexander, David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir

Excused: Lisa L Huillier

Absent: None

I

II.

I1I.

Iv.

Call to Order: Chairman Converse called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m.
Privilege of the Floor: Mr. Converse invited guests to speak.

Mr. Zembiec said the ReEnergy folks have other obligations and asked if anyone had any
questions before they left. Mr. Johnson asked how many megawatts Fort Drum uses. Mr.
Richardson said annual average is about 23 megawatts, and it peeks at 28 megawatts in the
summer. Mr. Johnson asked if they sell the excess. Mr. Richardson said they do sell the excess

to the grid as wholesale power.

Resolution Number 12.05.2019.02 for Amending Trust Indenture for ReEnergy Black River
LLC Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds — Mr. Converse said that he will abstain from the
discussion and vote since ReEnergy is a client of his. A motion was made by Mr. Warneck to
approve the attached resolution as presented, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. Roll call vote was taken.
Mr. Converse — Abstain, Mr. Jennings — Yea, Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr. Walldroff — Yea, Mr.
Warneck — Yea, Mr. Johnson — Yea, and Ms. L’Huillier — Absent. Carried.

Mr. Richardson and Mr. Raiston left the meeting.

Minutes: Minutes of the regular meeting held November 7, 2019 were presented. A motion to
approve the minutes as presented was made by Mr. Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Warneck. All in
favor. Carried.

Audit Report for 2018-2019 — Bowers & Company: The audit report was given by Bryan
Olson during the JCLDC board meeting earlier this morning. He presented a clean unmodified
opinion. He said that board members can review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis at

their own leisure.

JCCFDC — Mr. Olson said that the JCCFDC is sitting on cash of approximately $10,000.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Board Meeting Minutes
December 5,2019

VL

VIL

The Internal Controls and Investment Reports were attached as required by the Authority Budget
Office/PARIS.

A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to accept the audit as presented, seconded by Mr. Johnson.
All in favor. Carried.

Treasurer’s Report: Mr. Aliasso reviewed the financials for the period ending November 30,
2019 along with the delinquent loans. After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to
accept the financial report as presented, seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in favor. Carried.

Denise Young, Keith Caughlin and Craig Fox entered the meeting at 9:42 a.m.
Committee Reports:

a. Governance Committee
i. Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance — Mr.
Walldroff said that the committee met to review the summary results. He
indicated that the board can discuss the results further next month but noted that
there was improvement from the previous year. After review and discussion, a
motion was made by Mr. Walldroff to accept the findings of the summary results,
seconded by Mr. Warneck. All in favor. Carried.

Unfinished Business:

1. 146 Arsenal Street Update —

Executive Session: At 9:45 a.m., Mr. Warneck made a motion to move into executive session to
discuss the possible disposition of real propeity, seconded by Mr. Johnson. Board Members,
LDC Board Member Christine Powers and Building and Grounds Chairman Kent Burto, Staff,
and Counsel remained. YMCA Officials were invited to stay.

At 9:59 a.m. a motion was made by Mr. Warneck to leave executive session, seconded by Mr.
Aliasso. All in favor. Carried.

Mr. Converse left the meeting at 10 a.m. YMCA Officials also left the meeting. Christine
Powers left the meeting at 10:01 a.m.

Mr. Warneck made a motion to have Counsel draft a purchase agreement with the YMCA with
terms discussed in executive session, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. All in favor. Carried. Mr.
Walldroff thanked Mr. Burto for all of his efforts as the Building and Grounds Chairman.

2. OYA PILOT - Attorney Russell said that he has the PILOT form drafted and indicated that
it has been accepted by OYA along with schedules and the option for them to add the battery
system. He said that he has to create the next three schedules which will be provided to Mr.
Johnson who can in turn provide them to OYA. He said that if they are accepted then we
would be ready to move forward and could hold a special meeting by the end of the year.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Board Meeting Minutes
December 5, 2019

VIII. New Business:

1.

MOU for Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern Railroad — Mr. Alexander provided a brief
background stating that it was a very complicated deal involving three counties. He said that
St. Lawrence County is lead on the project. He said that St. Lawrence County IDA has
identified a major industrial client that will use the rail. He said the client wants clarity
regarding the PILOT payment on usage since they feel the original wording is unclear. The
client wants to make sure that they will not be charged for the same car that may move from
one location to the next with raw materials then finished product. Mr. Zembiec added that it
was also to more clearly distinguish what would be considered “stone” and what would be
considered “freight”.

Mr. Aliasso noted that the percentages in the MOU don’t match those listed in the PILOT
agreement. Mr. Zembiec said those numbers may have been identified prior to the
renovations and then corrected.

After review and discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Warneck to approve the MOU as
presented, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. All in favor. Carried.

Annual Project Verification Review — Mr. Alexander said staff prepares this report
annually and indicated that it has always been available in our annual PARIS reports and
located on our website.

IX. Counsel:

1.

Authorizing Resolution Number 12.05.2019.01 for Oswego Beverage Company LLC
(Eagle Beverage) — Attorney Russell said that the minutes from the Public Hearing were
handed out today. He said that this resolution allows us to move forward and close on the
transaction. The PILOT is attached to the resolution as Exhibit A. He said that Oswego
Beverage closed on the land last week. After review and discussion, a motion was made by
Mr. Aliasso to approve the attached resolution as presented, seconded by Mr. Walldroff. Roll
call vote was taken. Mr. Converse — Absent, Mr. Jennings — Yea, Mr. Aliasso — Yea, Mr.
Walldroff — Yea, Mr. Warneck — Yea, Mr. Johnson — Yea, and Ms. L’Huillier — Absent.
Carried.

Office of the Attorney General — Initial Demand: Final Spill (Carthage Development
Group) — Mr. Zembiec said that he sent an email to board members yesterday providing
background. He said that the CIDC created the Carthage Development Group to own and
maintain the building that has low to moderate income housing. He said that in 2017
contamination was found and cleaned up and removed by DEC using spill funds from the
Attorney General’s Office. Having since identified the source of contamination, the AG’s
Office is now seeking reimbursement. Attorney Russell said that the IDA received the letter
because we are in the chain of title because of the PILOT Agreement; however, noted that we
do not have any financial obligations and no control. He said that his partner Tom Fucillo is
working with the AG’s Office to get the IDA out of it. Mr. Zembiec said that the CDG is
looking to receive an itemized bill from the Attorney General and is prepared to pay it.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Board Meeting Minutes
December 5, 2019

3. REDI Program — Initial discussion took place during the JCLDC board meeting earlier this
morning. Mr. Warneck made a motion that the Agency waive fees for sales tax exemption
for qualified applications filed with the REDI application, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. All in
favor. Carried.

X.  Adjournment: With no further business before the board, a motion to adjourn was made by Mr.
Johnson, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. All in favor. The meeting adjourned at 10:26 a.m.



AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency at 800 Starbuck Avenue, in the City
of Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on December 5, 2019 at 8:30 a.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson and, upon being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT: John Jennings, Robert E. Aliasso, Jr., W. Edward Walldroff, Paul
Warneck, William Johnson

ABSENT: David Converse, Lisa L'Huillier

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT: Donald Alexander, David Zembiec, Lyle
Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir, Kent Burto, Marcus Wolf and Craig Fox from the

Watertown Daily Times

The following resolution was offered by Mr. Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Walldroff, to wit;

Resolution No.:12.05.2019.01

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION
TOWARD THE LEASE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTION WITH
OSWEGO BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC HAVING AN
ADDRESS OF 113 GARDENIER ROAD, OSWEGO, NEW
YORK 13216 FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE CONSTRUCTION
OF A 8,050 SQUARE FOOT BUILDING AND THE EQUIPPING
THEREOF WITH CERTAIN MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
TO CONSTITUTE A WAREHOUSE, DISTRIBUTION AND
REDEMPTION FACILITY.

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency’) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of Laws of 1969 of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 77 of the
1974 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 902 of said General Municipal Law
(said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act’) to
promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving,
maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose
of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 1 V5 6/30/15



advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people
of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent
unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects”
(as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed
and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to
purchase; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an application, including a cost benefits analysis (the
“Application”), submitted to the Agency by Oswego Beverage Company LLC (the
“Company”), wherein the Agency has been requested to consider undertaking a project (the
“Project”), consisting of the following:

AV )| The acquisition of an interest in that certain property located at NYS
Route 3, in the Town of Watertown, County of Jefferson, New York (the “Land”), as more
particularly described in the PILOT Agreement, and

2) The construction on the Land of a new 8,050 square foot building and
the equipping thereof with certain machinery and equipment to constitute a warehouse,
distribution and redemption facility (the “Project”) (the Land and the Project being collectively
referred to as the “Project Facility”); and

(B)  The granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section
854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including exemption from
certain sales taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and

(C)  The lease or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person
as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on November 7, 2019, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A)
caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project
and the financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the Project
(the “Public Hearing”) to be mailed on November 14, 2019 to the chief executive officer of
the County, Town , and School District in which the Project is to be located, (B) caused notice
of the Public Hearing to be published on November 16, 2019, in the Watertown Daily Times,
a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of the County of Jefferson, (C)
conducted the Public Hearing on December 3, 2019 at 10:00 o’clock a.m., local time at the
Town of Watertown Town Offices, 22867 County Route 67, Watertown, New York, (D)
prepared a report of the Public Hearing which fairly summarized the views presented at said
Public Hearing and distributed same to the members of the Agency; and

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 2 V5 6/30/15



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the
regulations (the "Regulations") adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,
"SEQRA"), the members of the Agency adopted a resolution on November 7. 2019, (the
"SEQR Resolution") in which the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes an
"Unlisted Action", (B) therefore that the coordinated review procedures outlined in the
Regulations are strictly optional, (C) that the Project will not have a "significant effect on
the environment" pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore that no environmental impact
statement need be prepared with respect to the Project, and (D) that a negative
declaration would be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing, the Agency proposes to enter into
the following documents with the Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency

Documents”):

(A)  Alease to the Agency (and a memorandum thereof) (the “Underlying Lease”)
by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as tenant pursuant
to which the Company will lease to the Agency the Project Facility;

(B)  Alease agreement (and a memorandum thereof) (the “Lease Agreement’) by
and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to which, among other
things, the Company agrees to undertake the Project as agent of the Agency
and the Company further agrees to lease the Project Facility from the Agency
and to pay all legal fees and expenses incurred by the Agency with respect to
the Project;

(C)  Apaymentin lieu of tax agreement (the “Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement”
or the “PILOT") by and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to
which the Company will agree to make certain payments in lieu of taxes with
respect to the Project Facility; and

(D)  Various certificates relating to the Project (the “Closing Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to the
representations by the Company that the granting by the Agency of the Financial Assistance
with respect to the Project will be in an inducement to the Company to undertake the Project

in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Agency have agreed on a certain Payment in Lieu
of Taxes Agreement and Distribution Schedule to the Taxing Jurisdictions of such payments
in lieu of taxes in substantially the form and affect and appears at Exhibit “A” to this

Resolution.

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 3 V5 6/30/15



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1 The Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act
and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Project constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and

(C)  The acquisition of the Project Facility and the lease of the Project Facility to the
Company will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general prosperity
and economic welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the
State of New York and improve their standard of living; and

(D)  ltis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to grant to the Company
the relief provided by the Payment In Lieu of Taxes Agreement, and to enter
into the Agency Documents upon the satisfaction of all conditions thereto.

Section 2 In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines that the
granting of the financial assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project, through the
granting of various tax exemptions described herein, and set forth on the exhibits attached
hereto, will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York, and improve their
standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act.

Section 3 In consequence of the foregoing, and subject to the satisfactions of any
conditions as imposed herein or as may be required by the Act, the Agency hereby determines

to:
(A)  Proceed with the Project;
(B)  Acquire the Project Facility;

(C)  Accept an Underlying Lease of the Project on terms to be determined by the
Agency;

(D)  Lease the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to a Lease Agreement on
terms to be determined by the Agency;

(E)  Enterinto the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement in the form and substance as
attached hereto; and

(F)  Execute and deliver the other Agency Documents upon terms and conditions
satisfactory to the Chief Executive Officer; and

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 4 V5 6/30/15
-10- /



(G) Execute and deliver the Closing Documents upon terms and conditions
satisfactory to the Chief Executive Officer; and

(H)  Grant the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project.

Section 4 The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facility pursuant to an Underlying Lease and to do all things necessary or appropriate
for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to
such acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 5 The Agency is hereby authorized to lease the Project Facility back to the
Company pursuant to the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or appropriate to
renovate, construct and equip the Project pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement.

Section 6 (A) The Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby authorized, on
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agency Documents and, where appropriate,
the Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of
the Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in substantially the forms thereof presented to
this meeting, with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions thereto as the Chief
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chief Executive Officer to
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval.

(B) The Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby further
authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives
of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Lease Agreement).

Section 7 The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and
things required or provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute
and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in
the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the
purposes of the foregoing Resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

Section 8 The Agency hereby determines and finds that the Project is a qualifying
non-industrial project, therefore, pursuant to the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exempt Policy, the
consent of the Affected Taxing Jurisdictions is not required.

Section 9 This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 5 V5 6/30/15
-11-



David Converse

John Jenninas

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.

W. Edward Walldroff

Paul Warneck

William Johnson

Lisa L'Huillier

VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING
VOTING

VOTING

Absent

Yea

Yea

Yea

Yea

Yea

Absent

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted.

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX}

-12-

V5 6/30/15



EXHIBIT “A” to AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between OSWEGO BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC a
New York limited liability company having an address of 113 Gardenier Road, Oswego, New
York 13126 (“Company”) and JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, an Industrial Development Agency and a Public Benefit Corporation of the State
of New York having an address of 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, New York 13601

(HAgency”),
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Agency was created by Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State
of New York pursuant to Title | of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York (collectively, the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency by Resolution dated December 5, 2019, has agreed to
undertake a project to construct a new 8,050 square foot building together with the acquisition
of certain machinery and equipment all of which to constitute a warehouse distribution and
redemption facility on certain land owned by the Company at New York State Route 3 ,
Watertown, New York (Tax Map Parcel No. ) (the “Land”), in the Town of
Watertown, Jefferson County, New York, as more particularly described in Schedule “A”
attached hereto (the Project and the Land are hereinafter referred to as the “Project Facility”);

and

WHEREAS, the Company is or will be the fee title owner of the Project Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Company will execute and deliver to the Agency, a certain lease
agreement to the Agency (the “Underlying Lease”) pursuant to which the Company leases
to the Agency the Project Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Agency will immediately thereafter lease the Project Facility to the
Company pursuant to a Lease Agreement executed and entered into of even date herewith
(the “Lease Agreement’) by and between Agency and the Company; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement (1) the Company will agree
to cause the Project to be undertaken and completed, and (2) the Agency will agree to
undertake and complete the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 874(1) of the Act, and Section 412(a) of the Real
Property Tax Law of the State of New York, the Agency is exempt from the payment of taxes
and assessments imposed upon real property and improvements owned by it other than
special ad valorem levies, special assessments and service charges against real property

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.D0CX} 7 V5 6/30/15

-13-



located in Jefferson County which are or may be imposed for special improvements or special
district improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Taxing Jurisdictions, which are, collectively, the Town of Watertown
(“Town”), Jefferson County (“County”) and the Watertown City School District (“School”),
have the following taxable years: the Town and County January 1 to December 31,
and the School July 1 to June 30; and

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Company deem it necessary and proper to enter into
this agreement making provision for payments in lieu of taxes by the Company to the Agency,
for the benefit of the respective Taxing Jurisdictions within which the Project Facility is or is to
be located;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained, it is mutually
agreed as follows:

1. (a) For the purpose of payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement,
the Completion Date for the Project shall be the earlier of twelve (12) months
from the date the building permit was issued for any part of the Project, or the
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. The Company shall notify each Taxing
Jurisdiction and the Agency within 30 days after the Completion Date for the

Project.

(b) Commencing with the tax year beginning on the next Taxable Status
Date following the Completion Date and for the period set forth below or until
the earlier termination of the Lease Agreement, the Company agrees to pay in
lieu of all real estate, tangible personal property, inventory and/or other similar
taxes and assessments (in addition to paying all special ad valorem levies,
special assessments and service charges which are or may be imposed for
special improvements or special district improvements) which would be levied
upon the Project Facility during such tax years as if the Project Facility were
owned by the Company and not by the Agency, the amounts determined
according to the following formula:

PILOT=AV x ATR x PR

WHERE
PILOT = Amount of payment in lieu of taxes due to the Taxing
Jurisdictions for the applicable tax year.
AV = Assessed Value of the Project Facility.
ATR = Actual Tax Rate for the respective Taxing Jurisdictions for
the applicable year.
{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 8 V5 6/30/15

-14-



2.

PR = Payment Ratio as set forth in Table | for the applicable tax
year.

TABLE |

Year1-5 25% of all Real Estate Taxes;
Years 6 —- 10 50% of all Real Estate Taxes;
Years 11-15  75% of all Real Estate Taxes;
Thereafter; 100% of all Real Estate Taxes;

(¢ The Company shall pay, or cause to be paid the amounts set forth in
Paragraph 1(b) hereof within the grace period, without penalty, applicable to
taxes, assessments, special ad valorem levies; special service charges or
similar tax equivalents, as the case may be, on similar property subject to
taxation by the Taxing Jurisdictions during such respective tax years, subject to
any late payment penalties pursuant to §874 of the Act if not made within the
grace period. Any failure on the part of the Company to timely make any
payments pursuant to this Agreement within ten (10) days following written
notice from the Agency shall be an event of default ("Event of Default”) under
this Agreement and under the Lease Agreement. Upon such Event of Default,
the Agency shall have any and/or all of the Remedies on Default set forth in the
Lease Agreement. Further, upon such Event of Default, the Payments In Lieu
of Tax due under this Agreement shall, upon thirty (30) days written notice from
the Agency to the Company, immediately bear a Payment Ratio of 100% as
such term is defined in the PILOT in Paragraph 1(b) of this Agreement until
such Event of Default shall be cured by the Company.

(d) The assessed value of the Project Facility shall be the value as finally
determined on the Assessment Roll of the Taxing Jurisdiction for the applicable

year.

(e Prior to the Completion Date as defined in Paragraph 1(a) above of the
Project, the Company shall pay to the Agency on the Project an amount equal
to the real estate taxes and assessments on the Land for the Project as if the
Land were owned by the Company and not by the Agency. The Company shall
pay or cause such amounts to be paid within the grace period without penalty,
applicable to taxes, assessments, special ad valorem levies, special service
charges or similar tax equivalents, as the case may be, on similar property
subject to taxation by the Taxing Jurisdictions during such respective tax years,
subject to any late payment penalties pursuant to Section 874 of the Act if not
made within the grace period.

This Agreement shall terminate, unless it is terminated sooner pursuant to the

Lease Agreement or any other provisions of this Agreement, on a date which will be 180
months from the initial Taxable Status Date (“Termination Date”) at which time the parties
agree that the Lease and Underlying Lease for the Project Facility shall terminate. In the event

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 9 V5 6/30/115

-15-



of an early termination either pursuant to this Paragraph or any other termination pursuant to
this Agreement, both the Lease and the Underlying Lease shall terminate.

3. In the event that the Project Facility is transferred from the Agency to the
Company, the Project Facility shall be immediately subject to taxation pursuant to Sections
302 and 520 of the New York Real Property Tax Law, as amended. However, in no event
shall the Company be required to pay both a PILOT payment pursuant to the Agreement and
real property taxes for a concurrent tax year or portion thereof. Therefore, should the Project
Facility be conveyed to the Company and thus become taxable pursuant to New York RPTL
Section 520, any payments payable under this Agreement as Payments required in Lieu of
Taxes shall be reduced by the amount of any taxes which are required to be paid under RPTL
Section 520 for any such concurrent tax year or portion thereof, and should such Payment-in-
Lieu-of-Taxes already have been made, the Taxing Jurisdictions shall refund any such
amounts owing to Company.

4. To the extent the Project Facility or any part thereof is declared to be subject to
taxation or assessments by an amendment to the Act, other legislative change, or by a final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, the obligations of the Company hereunder shall,
to such extent, be null and void.

5. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have
been duly given when delivered and, if delivered by mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested, addressed to the respective parties hereto at their respective addresses specified
below or such other addresses as either party may specify in writing to the other:

If to the Agency: Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Attn: Donald C. Alexander

With a copy to: Barclay Damon, LLP
120 Washington Street, Suite 500
Watertown, New York 13601
Attn: Joseph W. Russell, Esq..

If to the Company: Oswego Beverage Company LLC
Attn: Daniel E. Dorsey, Jr.
113 Gardiner Road
Oswego, New York 13126

With a copy to: Victor Hirshdorfer, Esq
Pappas, Cox, Kimpel, Dodd & Levine, P.C.
614 James Street
Syracuse, New York 132023

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.D0CX} 10 V5 6/30/15
-16-



6. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New York.

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties,
their respective successors and assigns.

8. This Agreement may only be assigned by the Company in accordance with
Section 8.4 of the Lease Agreement.

9. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original for all purposes and all of which shall constitute collectively
a single agreement. In making proof of this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce
or account for more than one such counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed this Agreement on
the date set forth before the signature of its respective representative.

Date: , 2019 OSWEGO BEVERAGE COMPANY LLC

By:

Daniel E. Dorsey, Jr.

Date: , 2019 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:

Donald C. Alexander, CEO

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.DOCX} 11 V5 6/30/15
-17-



SCHEDULE “A”
(Legal Description of Land)

{23718/30845/RDR/01216149.D0CX} 12 V5 6/30/15
-18-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Resolution Number 12.05.2019.02

Amending Trust Indenture for ReEnergy Black River LLC Solid Waste Disposal
Revenue Bonds

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Issuer”)
previously entered into a Trust Indenture dated as of November 1, 2014 (the "Trust Indenture"),
by and between the Issuer and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (with its successors, the
"Trustee") (as heretofore amended and supplemented, the “Trust Indenture”) in connection with
the issuance in 2014 and 2015 of its Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds and Subordinate Solid
Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds, respectively, for the benefit of ReEnergy Black River LLC (the

“Company”); and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has been requested by the Company to enter into a Third
Supplemental Indenture (the “Third Supplemental Indenture”) by and between the Issuer and the
Trustee for the purpose of making certain amendments to the Trust Indenture, which
amendments will be approved by the Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee and the holders of

the affected Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. (a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the
Issuer (each an "Authorized Representative of the Issuer") is hereby authorized, on behalf of the
Issuer, to execute and deliver the Third Supplemental Indenture, together with all related
documents and the Secretary of the Issuer is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Issuer
thereto where appropriate and to attest the same, all in substantially the forms approved by
Counsel to the Issuer and Bond Counsel. The execution of the Third Supplemental Indenture and
related documents by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer shall constitute conclusive

evidence of such approval.

(b) An Authorized Representative of the Issuer is further hereby authorized, on
behalf of the Issuer, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Issuer.

Section 2. The officers, employees, and agents of the Issuer are hereby authorized and
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Issuer to do all acts and things required or
provided by the provisions of the Trust Indenture and the Third Supplemental Indenture, and to
execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments and documents, including the
Third Supplemental Indenture, to determine and to do all such further acts and things as may be
necessary or in the opinion of the officer, employee, or agent acting, desirable and proper to
effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the Issuer with all of
the terms, covenants, and provisions of the Trust Indenture and Third Supplemental Indenture

binding upon the Issuer.

81731538v.1 -19-



Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

- OM )J/(&f

_Edward Walldroff, Sécretary ~ 7

81731538v.1 -20-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Balance Sheet For The Period Ending December 31, 2019

Cash:
Unrestricted
PILOT Checking

146 Arsenal Cap. Res.

RCI Cash

Loan Funds Cash
Accounts Rec:
PILOT
Miscellaneous
Rogers

Loans Receivable
Allow Bad Debt RLF
Bad Debt Micro
Prepaid Expense
Total Current Asset

Other Assets:
WIP Airport

WIP 146 Arsenal
WIP Records

IT Server-Tablets
Corp. Park Impr.
Airport Property
Woolworth Building
Depreciation

146 Arsenal Building
Total Other Assets
Total Assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
A/P PILOT

Due HUD-Loan Intr.
Maintenance Reserve
Maint Exp. Fund
Other C/L

Total Current Liab.

L. Term Liabilities:
NYS IAP Grant
Deferred - Rogers
Total LT Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance
Liabilities & Capital

Accounting/JCIDA Custom Financials

Unrestricted PILOT RLF MICRO City 146 Arsenal Airport Total
165,877.52 - - 165,877.52
0.00 -
960,609.52 960,609.52
0.00 -

3,660,210.98  78,532.52 127,296.89 3,866,040.39

9,856.41 9,856.41

36.00 36.00
21,333.60 21,333.60
765,093.91 305,898.87 151,738.28 1,222,731.06
(275,325.05) (275,325.05)
(30,641.75) (30,641.75)

34,570.65 34,570.65
221,817.77 9,856.41 4,149,979.84 353,789.64 279,035.17 960,609.52 0.00 5,975,088.35
103,332.94 103,332.94
11,000.00 11,000.00
0.00
19,416.00 19,416.00
209,995.14 209,995.14
884,326.02 884,326.02
505,000.00 505,000.00
(182,610.86) (1,156,388.95) (1,338,999.81)
- 1,233,689.56 1,233,689.56
931,126.30 000 § - $ : $ - 582,300.61 103,332.94 1,627,759.85
1,152,944.07 9,856.41 4,149,979.84 353,789.64 279,035.17 1,542,910.13 103,332.94 7,602,848.20
Liabilities And Capital
Unrestricted RLF MICRO City Convergys Total

3,508.00 3,508.00
9,856.41 - 9,856.41

962.21 1.16 2.04 965.41

14,445.48 14,445.48

25,927.57 25,927.57

11,000.00 11,000.00
14,508.00 9,856.41 962.21 1.16 2.04 40,373.05 - 65,702.87
180,159.78 0.00 180,159.78
21,333.60 0.00 21,333.60
201,493.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 201,493.38
216,001.38 9,856.41 962.21 1.16 2.04 40,373.05 - 267,196.25
936,942.69 0.00 4,149,017.63 353,788.48 279,033.13 1,502,537.08 103,332.94 7,335,651.95

_21-

7,602,848.20



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Income Statement for the Three Month Period Ending December 31, 2019
Prepared by Lyle Eaton, December 30, 2019

Revenues

Application & Process Fees
RCI Annual CD Fund

Bond Admin Fee

PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees
Fee Income - RLF Program
Fee income - Micro Program
interest Income

Interest Income - RLF Progra
Late Payment Penalty RLF
Interest Income - City Fund
Interest Income - Micro Prog.
Late Payment Penalty - Micro
Miscellaneous Income

FTZ Fees

Total Revenues

Operations

Office Expense

RCI Fee Sharing

Admin Services Exp

D&O Insurance

Commercial Insurance
Comm Ins 146 Arsenal

FTZ Expense

Legal - Unrestricted

Legal Corp Park

Accounting & Auditing
Consultants

Coffeen Park Taxes

Airport Park Taxes

Fees Expense

RLF Program Expense
Microenterprise Program Exp
RLF Audit Expense
Landscaping

146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenanc
Security

Plowing 146 Arsenal

IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expens
City/County Parking Lot Fund
Insurance

Building Depreciation

146 Arsena Equip. Depreciati
146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water

Salary Expense

Consultants

Miscellaneous - Unrestricted

Total Operations
Total Revenue
Total Expenses

Net Income Over Expenditu

Page: 1

UNRECONCILED

Current Year-to-Date Current Previous Balance
Year Budget Total Month Month Remaining
$ 3,000.00 3,270.00 $ 0.00 3,020.00 (270.00)
279,427.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 279,427.00
3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
518,017.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 518,017.00
43,424.00 10,855.68 3,618.56 3,618.56 32,568.32
26,137.00 6,291.84 2,097.28 2,097.28 19,845.16
2,500.00 809.80 163.48 312.45 1,690.20
55,000.00 6,874.61 1,924.28 853.84 48,125.39
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
8,200.00 1,616.04 169.42 537.41 6,583.96
5,000.00 3,218.31 1,023.13 740.35 1,781.69
500.00 15.22 0.00 15.22 484.78
2,000.00 486.91 169.43 168.30 1,5613.09
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
947,605.00 33,438.41 9,165.58 11,363.41 914,166.59
1,000.00 119.80 0.00 58.64 880.20
139,714.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 139,714.00
600,377.00 150,094.23 50,031.41 50,031.41 450,282.77
14,400.00 3,263.25 1,087.75 1,087.75 11,136.75
8,000.00 1,865.37 621.79 621.79 6,134.63
15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00
1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12,000.00 3,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00
5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
11,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,000.00
1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
1,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00
300.00 2,368.00 40.00 2,310.00 (2,068.00)
43,424.00 10,855.68 3,618.56 3,618.56 32,568.32
26,167.00 6,291.84 2,097.28 2,097.28 19,875.16
800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00
0.00 2,800.00 1,400.00 0.00 (2,800.00)
0.00 419.20 0.00 5.92 (419.20)
0.00 22,741.43 0.00 10,896.79 (22,741.43)
25,000.00 0.00 0.00 ‘ 0.00 25,000.00
0.00 7,168.46 1,763.34 4,155.12 (7,168.46)
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 6,244.89 2,081.63 2,081.63 (6,244.89)
74,000.00 18,275.46 6,091.82 6,091.82 55,724.54
4,773.00 1,193.16 397.72 397.72 3,579.84
0.00 9,190.44 0.00 5,501.78 (9,190.44)
0.00 912.76 43.38 0.00 (912.76)
0.00 7,492.44 2,454.42 2,583.60 (7,492.44)
0.00 2,280.30 0.00 525.00 (2,280.30)
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
1,006,405.0 277,826.71 72,729.10 93,064.81 728,578.29
947,605.00 33,438.41 9,165.58 11,363.41 914,166.59
1,006,405.0 277,826.71 72,729.10 93,064.81 728,578.29
$ (58,800.00) (244,388.30) $ (63,563.52) (81,701.40) 185,588.30

For Intern_po_se Only



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Income Statement for the Three Month Period Ending December 31, 2019

Unrestricted Income

Revenues

Application & Process Fees
RCI Annual CD Fund

Bond Admin Fee
PILOT/Sale Leaseback Fees
Fee Income - RLF Program
Fee Income - Micro Program
Interest Income
Miscellaneous Income

FTZ Fees

Total Revenues

Expenses
Operations

Office Expense

RCI Fee Sharing

Admin Services Exp

D&O Insurance

Commercial Insurance

Comm Ins 146 Arsenal

FTZ Expense

Legal - Unrestricted

Legal Corp Park

Accounting & Auditing
Consultants

Coffeen Park Taxes

Airport Park Taxes

Fees Expense

City/County Parking Lot Fund
Insurance

Building Depreciation

146 Arsena Equip. Depreciation
146 Arsenal Electric

146 Arsenal Water

Salary Expense

Consultants

Miscellaneous - Unrestricted
Landscaping

146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenance
Security

Plowing 146 Arsenal

IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expense

Total Operations

Total Income
Total Expenses

Profit (Loss)

$

Current Year Year-to-Date Current Month Previous

Budget Total Month
3,000.00 3,270.00 $ 0.00 3,020.00
279,427.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
518,017.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43,424.00 10,855.68 3,618.56 3,618.56
26,137.00 6,291.84 2,097.28 2,097.28
2,500.00 809.80 163.48 31245
2,000.00 486.91 169.43 168.30
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
878,705.00 21,714.23 6,048.75 9,216.59
1,000.00 119.80 0.00 58.64
139,714.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
600,377.00 150,094.23 50,031.41 50,031.41
14,400.00 3,263.25 1,087.75 1,087.75
8,000.00 1,865.37 621.79 621.79
15,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00 0.00
12,000.00 3,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
300.00 2,368.00 40.00 2,310.00
20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 6,244.89 2,081.63 2,081.63
74,000.00 18,275.46 6,091.82 6,091.82
4,773.00 1,193.16 397.72 397.72
0.00 9,190.44 0.00 5,501.78
0.00 912.76 43.38 0.00
0.00 7,492 .44 2,454.42 2,583.60
0.00 2,280.30 0.00 525.00
200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 2,800.00 1,400.00 0.00
0.00 419.20 0.00 5.92
0.00 22,741.43 0.00 10,896.79
25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 7,168.46 1,763.34 4,155.12
936,014.00 260,679.19 67,013.26 87,348.97
878,705.00 21,714.23 6,048.75 9,216.59
936,014.00 260,679.19 67,013.26 87,348.97
(57,309.00) (238,964.96) $ (60,964.51) (78,132.38)

For Inte_ 23 -Ise Only

% YTD of
Budget

109.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
25.00
24.07
32.39
2435

0.00

2.47

11.98

25.00
22.66
23.32
0.00
100.00
25.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
789.33
100.00
0.00
24.70
25.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

27.85

247
27.85

416.98

Page: 1



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
146 Arsenal Expenses for the Three Month Period Ending December 31, 2019

Prepared by Lyle Eaton

Current Year Year-to-Date Current Month Previous
Budget Total Month

Expenses

Landscaping $ 0.00 2,800.00 $ 1,400.00 0.00
146 Arsenal Bldg Maintenance 0.00 419.20 0.00 5.92
Security 0.00 22,741.43 0.00 10,896.79
Plowing 146 Arsenal 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
IDA 146 Arsenal Bldg Expens 0.00 7,168.46 1,763.34 4,155.12
City/County Parking Lot Fund 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
Insurance 0.00 6,244.89 2,081.63 2,081.63
Building Depreciation 74,000.00 18,275.46 6,091.82 6,091.82
146 Arsena Equip. Depreciatio 4,773.00 1,193.16 397.72 397.72
146 Arsenal Electric 0.00 9,190.44 0.00 5,501.78
146 Arsenal Water 0.00 912.76 43.38 0.00
Salary Expense 0.00 7,492.44 2,454.42 2,583.60
Consultants 0.00 2,280.30 0.00 525.00
Total Expenses $ 123,773.00 98,71854 $ 14,232.31 32,239.38

For Interr_o/ _e Only

Page: 1

% YTD of
Budget

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
100.00
0.00
24.70
25.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

79.76



Current Assets

General Checking

Savings Account
Microenterprise Account

City Loan Account

Revolving Loan Fund Account
PILOT Monies Receivable
Miscellaneous Receivable
Acct Receivable - Rogers

RLF Loans Receivable
Microenterprise Loans Rec.
Watn. Economic Growth Fund Rec
Allowance for Bad Debt-RLF
Allow. for Bad Debts-MICRO
Prepaid Expense

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment
Accum Depr - Building
Accum Depr. Equipment

Total Property and Equipment

Other Assets

IT Server

Galaxy Tablets

Corp. Park Improvements
Airport Property

WIP Airport

Woolworth Building

146 Ars Building Improvements
WIP Arsenal Deck & Sidewalks

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Unrestricte
PILOT Monies Payable

Due HUD - RLF Interest

Due HUD - MICRO Interest
Due HUD - CITY Loan Interest
Maintenance Reserve Convergys
Maintenance Expense Convergys
Car Freshner Signage

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet
December 31,2019

ASSETS

$ 10,353.54
1,116,133.50
78,532.52
127,296.89
3,660,210.98
9,856.41
36.00
21,333.60
765,093.91
305,898.87
151,738.28
(275,325.05)
(30,641.75)
34,570.65

(1,156,388.95)
(182,610.86)

6,050.00
13,366.00
209,995.14
884,326.02
103,332.94
505,000.00
1,233,689.56
11,000.00

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

$ 3,508.00
9,856.41

962.21

1.16

2.04

14,445.48

25,927.57

11,000.00

Unaudited - For Man_ 95 _ent Purposes Only

5,975,088.35

(1,338,999.81)

2,966,759.66

7,602,848.20

65,702.87



Due NYS/IAP L.T.
Deferred Revenue - Rogers

Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital

General Fund Bal - Unrestrict.

Fund Bal - RLF Restricted
Fund Bal - Micro Restricted
Fund Bal - City Restricted
Cap. Impr. Convergys

Net Income

Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet
December 31,2019

180,159.78
21,333.60

1,503,830.67
4,419,309.27
414,850.76
262,489.22
979,560.33

(244,388.30)

Unaudited - For Mar - 2¢ _ent Purposes Only

201,493.38

267,196.25

7,335,651.95

7,602,848.20




12/30/19 at 10:33:42.59

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

Unrestricted Aged Payables
As of Dec 31, 2019

Fitter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Farmat.

Page: 1

Vendor invoice/CM # Date Net To Pay
ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 92015560 12/23/19 273.60
ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 273.60
BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 19-14486 12/23/19 3,234.40
BERNIER, CARR & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 3,234.40

3,508.00

-27-



12/30/19 at 10:34:55.40

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

Cash Disbursements Journal

For the Period From Dec 1, 2019 to Dec 31, 2019
Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date. Report is printed in Detail Format,

Page: 1

Debit Amount

Credit Amount

Date Check# AccountID Line Description
12/4/19 7146 200001 Invoice: 9498175 10,896.79
100001 ALLIED UNIVERSAL SECURITY SERVICES 10,896.79
12/4119 7147 200001 Invoice: 2028 RETAINER 1,000.00
100001 BARCLAY DAMON LLP 1,000.00
12/4/19 7148 200001 Invoice: 12/19 MAIN ST 134.93
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 134.93
12/4/19 7149 200001 Invoice: 2020-36 50,031.41
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 50,031.41
12/4119 7150 200001 Invoice: 45157-11/19 36.77
200001 Invoice: 45150-11/19 337.41
200001 Invoice: 45198-11/19 23.57
200001 Invoice: 11-22-19 5,104.03
100001 NATIONAL GRID 5,501.78
12/4/19 7151 200001 Invoice: 20161126-1 575.00
100001 SERV-PRO OF JEFFERSON 575.00
12/4/19 7152 200001 Invoice: 12/19 MAIN ST 134.93
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 134.93
12/4/19 71583 200001 Invoice: 0448-0 71.43
100001 WASTE MANAGEMENT 71.43
12/4118 7154 200001 Invoice: 2020-3 1,250.00
100001 WATERTOWN INDUSTRIAL CENTER 1,250.00
12/4/19 7155 200001 [nvoice: 1851 43.38
100001 CITY COMPTROLLER 43.38
12/4119 7156 200001 Invoice: 12/19 SANDWICH 358.55
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 358.55
12/4/19 7157 200001 Invoice: 12/19 SANDWICH 358.56
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 358.56
12112119 7158 200001 Invoice: 82015348 359.00
100001 ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 359.00
12112119 7158 200001 Invoice: 9990000431433 2,310.00
100001 NYSDEC 2,310.00
12/12/19 7160 200001 Invoice: 14019 1,400.00
100001 JAKES LAWN CARE 4,400.00
12/12119 7161 200001 Invoice: UCC CONT MR RICKS 40.00
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY CLERK 40.00
12112119 7162 200001 Invoice: 12/19 PAINFULL 565.35
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 565.35
1212119 7163 200001 Invoice: 12/19 PAINFULL 424,02
100001 SACKETS HARBOR LDC 424.02
12112119 7164 200001 Invoice: 2197 1,162.62
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 1,162.62
12/19/19 7165 200001 Invoice: 12-10-19 168.31
100001 WESTELCOM 168.31
12/23/19 7166 200001 Invoice: 92015323 1,452.00
100001 ABJ FIRE PROTECTION CO 1,452.00
12/23/19 7167 200001 Invoice: 11-27-19 525.00
100001 ConTegra Setvices, Inc 525.00
12/23/19 7168 200001 Invoice: 2198 1,291.80
100001 JEFF COUNTY LDC 1,291.80
Total 80,054.86 80,054.86

_08-



12/30/119 at 10:36:49.33

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
General Checking Cash Receipts Journal
For the Period From Dec 1, 2019 to Dec 31, 2019
Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Check Date. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Date AccountID Transaction Line Description Debit Amnt Credit Amnt
12/5/19 207005 200 12/19 DUE MICRO 358.55
205602 12/19 DUE SHLDC 358.56
100001 THE SANDWICH BAR 717.11
12/5/19 207005 1251 9/19 DUE MICRO 134.93
205602 9/19 DUE SHLDC 134.93
100001 MAIN STREET CRAFTS & DRAFTS 269.86
12/5/19 125501 2789 11/19 PRINCIPAL 151.43
412501 11/19 INTEREST 163.48
100001 KENNETH F. ROGERS 314.91
12/5/19 125001 5695 Invoice: 3457 3,020.00
100001 RBM MANUFACTURING CORP 3,020.00
12/5/19 125001 1210 Invoice: 3461 2,097.28
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 2,097.28
12/5119 125001 2165 Invoice: 3458 3,618.56
100001 JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 3,618.56
12112119 207005 1745 DUE MICRO 565.35
205602 DUE SHLDC 424,02
100001 PAINFULL ACRES 989.37
12/19/19 125001 4844 Invoice: 3463 200.00
100001 JCLDC 200.00
11,227.09 11,227.09

-29-




12/30/19 at 10:40:03.07

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

Miscellaneous Receivables
As of Dec 31, 2019
Fitter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Customer iD Invoice/CM 0-30 31-60 61-90 Over 90 days Amount Due
Customer
Bill To Contact
Telephone 1
CIDC PR 3-23-12 -338.38 -338.38
CARTHAGE INDUSTRIAL DEV. COR
JOHN MCHUGH
493-4429
CIbC -338.38 -338.38
CARTHAGE INDUSTRIAL DEV. COR
TASTE 3453 18.00 18.00
TASTE OF DESIGN 3464 18.00 18.00
TASTE 18.00 18.00 36.00
TASTE OF DESIGN

18.00 18.00 -338.38 -302.38

Report Total

-30-



12/30/19 at 10:39:37.05

Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Micro Loans Receivable
As of Dec 31, 2019

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Page: 1

Customer

Amount Due

ABOVE REALITY SPORTS COMPLEX

COLLEEN'S CHERRY TREE INN

R.L.GOULD & SON, LLC

THOUSAND [SLANDS AREA HABITAT FOR HUMA

MAIN STREET CRAFTS & DRAFTS
MEDICAL GAS TECHNOLOGIES
MR. RICKS BAKERY INC.
PAINFULL ACRES

RC SPOT, LLC

MR RICK'S BAKERY 2

DAN B SAMPSON (i

THE SANDWICH BAR

THE SCRUB HUB

SERV-PRO

SACKETS HARBOR TRADING CO.

TASTE OF DESIGN

37,034.47
34,950.54
35,091.11
29,029.26

5621.34

5,196.91
13,056,20
31,698.80
13,913.54
18,212.45
17,297.02
16,444.43
13,223.65

8,176.85

5,998.37

20,953.93

305,898.87

-31-



12/30/19 at 10:40:48.42 Page: 1
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Revolving Loan Fund Receivables
As of Dec 31, 2019

Fiiter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Customer Amount Due
BENCHMARK FAMILY SERVICES 152,261.51
MEADOWBROOK TERRACE 96,070.32
MLR,LLC 120,615.49
RBM MANUFACTURING CORP 200,000.00
WRIGHT BROS. LLC 196,146.59

765,093.91

-32-



12/30/19 at 10:41:12.31
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency
Watn. Economic Growth Fund
As of Dec 31, 2019

Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Summary Format.

Page: 1

Customer Amount Due
CURRENT APPLICATIONS 151,738.28

151,738.28

-33-



12/30/19 at 10:40:23.67
Jeff Co Industrial Development Agency

PILOT Receivables
As of Dec 31, 2019
Filter Criteria includes: 1) Includes Drop Shipments. Report order is by ID. Report is printed in Detail Format.

Page: 1

Customer ID Invoice/CM 0-30 31-60 61-90 Over 80 days

Customer
Bill To Contact
Telephone 1

Amount Due

CONVERGYS 3419 9,856.41

CONVERGYS CORPORATION
00406-001 CONVERGYS LEASE

9,856.41

CONVERGYS 9,856.41

CONVERGYS CORPORATION

9,856.41

Report Total 9,856.41

9,856.41

-34-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Fund Activity Report - Period Ending December 31, 2019

PILOTS
Current Month Receipts
Delinquent Accounts: Amount Due Due Date
Convergys ( Prorata City Tax- 3 Mos) 9,856.41 6/1/2019

Revolving Loan Fund
Cash Balance
Less: Commitments
Cash Available

RLF Receivables

Delinquent Accounts:

Microenterprise Loan Fund
Funds Available

Delinquent Accounts:

Mr, Risks Bakery ( Interest Only)
Mr, Risks Bakery ( Interest Only)
Taste of Design

City Loan Fund
Funds Available
Less: Commitments
Cash Available

CITY Receivables

Loan Receivable - Ken Rogers

accounting/idamonthlyfinancials

$ 3,660,210.98
$ E

$ 3,660,210.98

765,093.91
Months
Monthly Payment lLast Payment Delinquent Total Due
3 78,532.53
Months
Monthly Payment Last Payment Delinquent Total Due
54.43 9/13/2019 2 108.86
75.90 9/13/2019 2 151.80
269.78 12/30/2019 2 539.56

127,296.89

D &H

127,296.89

151,738.28

$ 21,333.66

-35-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

MICRO Loan Fund Receivables
December 31, 2019

Original Current Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
1|Above Reality Sports Complex May-19 40,000.00] 37,034.47| Current |Open VR Sports Complex
2|Colleens Cherry Tree Inn May-19 40,000.00) 34,950.54| Current [Expand Restaurant-lce Ceram Shop
3|R. L. Gould & Son, LLC March-19 40,000.00f 35,091.11 Current  |Open UPS Store
4| Tl Area Habitat For Humanity April-18 40,000.00 29,029.26 Current  |Open ReStore
5) 0.00
6|Main Street Crafts & Drafts Sep-18 7,150.00 5,621.34 Current |Craft Shop & Bar
7|Medical Gas Technologies Jun-15 40,000.00 5,196.91 Current  |Service Medical Gas Systems
8|Mr. Ricks Bakery Apr-15 40,000.00] 13,056.20| Delinquent |Expand Existing Bakery
9|Mr. Ricks Bakery-2 Apr-18 20,000.00] 18,212.45]| Delinquent [Working Capital
10|Painfull Acres Mar-18 40,000.00 31,698.80 Current  |Amish Furniture Store
11|RC Spot, LLC Mar-16 50,015.47 13,913.54 Current  |Craft Brewery & Restaurant
12|Dan B, Sampson |l Mar-18 30,000.00 17,297.02 Current  |Smoothie Bar
13|The Sandwich Bar Feb-19 19,000.00 16,444 .43 Current |Restaurant
14|The Scrub Hub Apr-18 18,656.00 13,223.65 Current  [Scrubs Clothing
15|Serv-Pro Jan-17 20,000.00 8,176.85 Current |Water/Fire Damage Clean Up
16|Sackets Harbor Trading Company Jan-06 40,000.00 5,898.37| Current |Retail Local Products
17| Taste of Design Apr-07 40,000.00] 20,953.93| Delinguent [Coffee Shop
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
Total RLF Receivables 524,821.47| 305,898.87 -

accounting-jcidafolder

-36-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

Revolving Loan Fund Receivables
December 31, 2019

Original Current Current
Recipient Date Issued Amount Balance Status Purpose of Loan
1|Benchmark Family Services January-03| 326,000.00| 152,261.51 Current  |Build Specialized Daycare/Nursery
2|RBM Manufacturing November-19| 200,000.00] 200,000.00 Current  |Working Capital
2 |Meadowbrook Terrace August-12|  250,000.00f 96,070.32| Current |Working Cap During Construction
2|MLR, LLC May-05| 150,000.00 5,884.72 Current  [Construct Refrigeration Warehouse
2|MLR, LLC July-07| 250,000.00] 114,730.77| Current |Expand Warehouse
6|Wright Bros, LLC June-12| 241,743.00| 196,146.59 Current  [Purchase Building
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
Total RLF Receivables 1,417,743.00| 765,093.91

accounting-jcidafolder

-37-




Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency

City Loan Fund Receivables

December 31, 2019

Recipient

Date Issued

Original
Amount

Current
Balance

Current
Status

Purpose of Loan

Current Applications

Apr-15

101,403.00

86,497.02

Current Manufacturing Plant Expansion

Current Applications

Jan-16

150,000.00

65,241.26

Current  |Purchase CNC Equipment

-
[od Ko Kol Rl K221 Ka] E-N [ 1 18] =N

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Total RLF Receivables

251,403.00

151,738.28

accounting-jcidafolder

-38-




Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

2019 Results in Bold, 2018 Results in ()

Criteria

Somewhat
Disagree

Somewhat

Agree Disagree

Agree

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.

(5) (2)

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence or self-
interest.

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

10

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.

11

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

12

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

13

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

14

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

15

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

16

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

(7)

Name of Authority: Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Date Completed: , 2019

-39-



County of Jefferson
Office of the County Administrator

Historic Courthouse

195 Arsenal Street, 2™ Floor

Watertown, NY 13601-2567

Phone: (315) 785-3075 Fax: (315) 785-5070

December 11, 2019

William W. Johnson
PO Box 454
Chaumont, NY 13622

Dear Bill:

This correspondence shall serve as formal notification of your reappointment to the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency for a term to expire December 31, 2021.

In conjunction with this appointment, NYS Public Officers Law requires that you file an oath
of office with the Jefferson County Clerk within thirty days from the date of your appointment. You
can appear personally in the County Clerk's Office (Monday - Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.)
with the enclosed form, or you may sign it before a Notary Public and then mail the form to the
County Clerk, 175 Arsenal Street, Watertown, NY 13601.

Also in conjunction with this appointment, Local Law No. 2 of 1990 requires that you file
an annual statement of financial disclosure. The Jefferson County Attorney's Office will contact you

in this regard.
Thank you for your cooperation and commitment to Jefferson County.

Sincerely,

¢ /
Robert F. Hagemann, III

Clerk of the Board and
County Administrator

RFH:jdj
Enc. :
c: Gizelle Meeks, County Clerk
David Paulsen, County Attorney
tDon Alexander, JCIDA Chief Executive Officer

-40-



County of Jefferson
Office of the County Administrator

Historic Courthouse

195 Arsenal Street, 2™ Floor

Watertown, NY 13601-2567

Phone: (315) 785-3075 Fax: (315) 785-5070

December 11, 2019

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
PO Box 148
Henderson, NY 13650

(
Dear Mr, Atfasso: (- 5
L4

This correspondence shall serve as formal notification of your reappointment to the Jefferson
County Industrial Development Agency for a term to expire December 31, 2023.

In conjunction with this appointment, NYS Public Officers Law requires that you file an oath
of office with the Jefferson County Clerk within thirty days from the date of your appointment. You
can appear personally in the County Clerk's Office (Monday - Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.)
with the enclosed form, or you may sign it before a Notary Public and then mail the form to the
County Clerk, 175 Arsenal Street, Watertown, NY 13601.

Also in conjunction with this appointment, Local Law No. 2 of 1990 requires that yoil file
an annual statement of financial disclosure. The Jefferson County Attorney's Office will contact you
in this regard.

Thank you for your cooperation and commitment to Jefferson County.

Sincerely,

SIS0

Robert F. Hagémaun, I
Clerk of the Board and
County Administrator

RFH:jdj
Enc. )
c: Gizelle Meeks, County Clerk
Q,avid Paulsen, County Attorney
vDon Alexander, JCIDA Chief Executive Officer

-4] -



October 18, 2019

To: File

From: D. C. Alexander

RE: Public Hearing for the proposed PILOT for OYA Great Lakes Seaway, LLC, OYA
Blanchard Road LLC, OYA NYS RTE 12 LLC, and OYA Blanchard Road 11, LLC.

The Public Hearing was convened at 10:10 AM on Friday, October 18, 2019 in the Town
of Orleans Municipal Building offices located at 20558 Sunrise Avenue, LaFargeville,
New York 13656 in accordance with the notice published in the Watertown Daily Times
dated October 4, 2019 (a copy of the public notice is attached to these Hearing notes).

The project is seeking support of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency to
assist them in the construction of four (4), 5 MW Community Distributive Generation
Solar projects producing energy using photo-voltaic panels, inverters and transformers.
The project will benefit National Grid retail customers who subscribe to the project by
reducing their energy bills.

The issuer contemplates providing financial assistance with respect to the Project in the
form of exemptions from real property taxes for that portion of the Project consisting of
real property, pursuant to the issuer’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy adopted in

accordance with Section 874 of the Act.

In addition to the Hearing Officer, two members of the Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency attended the Hearing.

7 individuals, other than IDA staff, attended the Hearing (copy of the sign in sheet is also
attached to these minutes).

Although some questions were asking during the Hearing, overall reactions to the
proposed PILOT agreement were favorable.

The Supervisor from the Town of Orleans Kevin Rarick, spoke in favor of the project,
citing not only the value of the project to the community but the very satisfactory results
the Town had received in its dealings with the project Developer.

Tom Johnson, a member of the Town of Orleans Town Board, also spoke in favor of the
project echoing many comments made by Supervisor Rarick.

One citizen raised a concern about the openness of the development of the PILOT for the
project, saying that more information should have been provided to the community
earlier in the process.




Town resident Carolyn Delaney expressed concern about the impact of the PILOT on the
two school districts involved saying that the benefit received from the PILOT might be
negated by an off-set in NYS School Aid.

The Hearing was concluded at 10:35 AM.

CQlepdre—

D. C. Alexander /
CEO

JCIDA
Conducting official

PS: It should be noted that staff and the two members of the IDA Board stayed to answer
additional questions following the close of the Public Hearing. This very informal
session lasted nearly two hours and addressed a number of details not permitted in the
context of the Public Hearing.




; COPY
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the
New York State General Municipal Law, as amended, (the "Act") will be held by the
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the "Issuer") on October 18, 2019
at 10:00 o'clock A.M., local_time, at the Town of Orleans Municipal Building, 20558
Sunrise Avenue, LaFargeville, NY 13656.

OYA Great Lakes Seaway, LLC, OYA Blanchard Road LLC,
OYA NYS RTE 12 LLC, OYA Blanchard Road 11 LLC, has
requested that the Issuer assist it in the construction of 4, 5
MW Solar collection facilites (Community Distributed
Generation Project) located on (Property 1) Parcel ID:
20.00-1-28, 40861-924 NYS Rt. 12, (Property 2) Parcel ID
13.00-2-51, Blanchard Rod, Orleans, NY, (Property 3) Parcel
ID: 13.00-2-53, Blanchard Road, Orleans, NY, (Property 4)
Parcel ID: 13:00-2-47.1 Robinson Road, Orleans, NY, all
vacant properties. The project will utilize solar energy to
produce electricity by using solar photo-voltaic panels,
inverters and transformers. The project benefiting National
Grid retail customers who subscribe to the project by reducing
their electric bills, The Jefferson County Industrial
Development Agency will support the construction of the
project (the "Project") by taking a leasehold interest in the
Project and leasing it back to the Company. The Company
will be the operator of the Project.

The Issuer contemplates providing financial assistance with
respect to the Project in the form of exemptions from real
property taxes for that portion of the Project consisting of real
property, pursuant to the Issuer's Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy adopted in accordance with Section 874 of the Act.

The Issuer will at said time and place hear all persons with views on, and receive
all written materials with respect to the granting of the financial assistance contemplated
by the Issuer, or the location or nature of the Project.

DATED: October 4, 2019

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:_s/Donald C. Alexander
Donald C. Alexander, CEO

“44-



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Public Hearing
Sign in Sheet

Date: Friday, October 18,2019 Start Time: 10:00 a.m.

Location: Town of Orleans Municipal Building, 20558 Sunrise Avenue, LaFargeville,
NY 13656

JCIDA Staff Member(s) Present: Donald Alexander, CEO

Company Name: OYA Great Lakes Seaway, LLC, OYA Blanchard Road LLC,
OYA NYS RTE 12 LLC, OYA Blanchard Road 11 LL.C

Print Name and Address:
A e ‘3.,.m.“ — Wrtidewn s My Ol

u\ A,({\/@\ m J\AT%P,( o /@\f
lkfhm([) //)ﬂ%vz;?? /MV(\)”KPUL /(0 ﬂ/y

B Wt/ - Fisfoas o
Y = /)@;bm@ N5y 7 d/ézzg%/,c’ DSIAD

C& 1)) \k\f\bc a(\éo( T‘/S\\ﬁfi \@/ \/(Qu\r/%—

%MM@/ A & ;ﬁ);,’q e/ é” 4 Ui

Notes for minutes:

-45-



A A

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION TRV Y

e

A meeting of Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was
convened in public session at the offices of the Agency at 800 Starbuck Avenue, in the City of
Watertown, Jefferson County, New York on January 9, 2020 at 8:30 a.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairperson and, upon being called, the following
members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

The following resolution was offered by , seconded by
to wit;

Resolution No.: 01.09.2020.01

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD
THE LEASE-LEASEBACK TRANSACTIONS WITH OYA NYS RTE
12 LLC, OYA BLANCHARD ROAD LLC, OYA BLANCHARD ROAD
2 LLC, AND OYA GREAT LAKES SEAWAY LLC (COLLECTIVELY
THE “COMPANY” AND INDIVIDUALLY THE “COMPANIES”) FOR
THE PURPOSE OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION
OF FOUR SEPARATE FIVE MEGAWATT SOLAR PHOTO-
VOLTAIC COMMUNITY ENERGY GENERATION AND
DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES ON THREE TAX PARCELS LOCATED
IN THE TOWN OF ORLEANS AND ONE TAX PARCEL LOCATED
IN THE TOWN OF CLAYTON

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency’) is authorized
and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of Laws of 1969 of New York, constituting
Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New
York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 369 of the 1971 Laws of New York, as

_46-



] ; 1f?; .}
R |'.'|i Jmadiw :ig

amended, constituting Section 892-e of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the
Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop,
encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving, maintaining,
equipping and furnishing of commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting,
attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New
York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and
economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in
the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to
convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an application, including a cost benefits analysis (the
“Application”), submitted to the Agency the Company wherein the Agency has been requested
to consider undertaking a project (the “Project”), consisting of the following:

(A) (1) The acquisition of an interest in those certain parcels of land located in the
Town of Orleans and identified on the latest completed assessment roll for the Town of Orleans
as tax parcels 13.00-2-51; 13.00-2-53; and 13.00-4-41.1; and a parcel of land located in the Town
of Clayton and identified on the latest completed assessment roll for the Town of Clayton as tax
parcel 20.00-1-28 , County of Jefferson, New York (the “Land”), as more particularly described
in the respective PILOT Agreements, and

(2) The construction and installation on the Land of a four separate five
megawatt solar photo-voltaic community energy generation and distribution facilities
(collectively the “Project” and individually the “Projects”) (the Land and the Project being
collectively referred to as the “Project Facilities”); and

(B)  The granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section
854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including exemption from
certain mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (collectively, the
“Financial Assistance”); and

(C)  Thelease or sale of the Project Facilities to the Companies or such other person as
may be designated by the Companies and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a preliminary Inducement Resolution adopted by the
members of the Agency on October 3, 2019, the Chief Executive Officer of the Agency (A) caused
notice of a public hearing of the Agency to hear all persons interested in the Project and the
financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the Project (the “Public
Hearing”) to be mailed by electronic mail on October 8, 2019 to the chief executive officer of the
County, City and School District in which the Project is to be located, (B) caused notice of the
Public Hearing to be published on October 8. 2019 in the Watertown Daily Times, a newspaper
of general circulation available to residents of the County of Jefferson, (C) conducted the Public

-47 -



FPR, :‘-’?ﬁj A e T
I A T
) b

!j'-.__.- & w4 bJ J

Hearing on October 18, 2019, at 10:00 o’clock a.m., local time at the Town of Orleans municipal
offices located at 20558 Sunrise Ave, LaFargeville, New York 13656, (D) prepared a report of the
Public Hearing which fairly summarized the views presented at said Public Hearing and
distributed same to the members of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the regulations
(the "Regulations"”) adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental
Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, "SEQRA"), the
members of the Agency adopted a resolution on October 3, 2019, (the "SEQR Resolution") in
which the Agency determined (A) that the Project constitutes a "Type 1 Action”, (B) that the
coordinated review procedures outlined in the Regulations was conducted by the Town of
Orleans Planning Board which issued its negative declaration determination of non-
significance, and that although the Agency was not included as an involved agency in the
coordinated review, the members of the Agency reviewed the record of the proceedings
before the Town of Orleans Planning Board and the full environmental assessment form and
concurred with the Planning Board’s determination (C) that the Project will not have a
"significant effect on the environment" pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore that no
environmental impact statement need be prepared with respect to the Project, and (D) that
a negative declaration would be prepared with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Projectand the  granting of the Financial
Assistance described in the notice of the Public Hearing, the Agency proposes to enter into the
following documents with the Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency
Documents”):

(A)  Alease to the Agency (and a memorandum thereof) for each of the Projects (the
“Underlying Leases”) by and between the Companies, as landlords, and the
Agency, as tenant pursuant to which the Companies will lease to the Agency the
Project Facilities;

(B) A lease agreement (and a memorandum thereof) for each of the Projects (the
“Lease Agreements”) by and between the Agency and the Companies, pursuant
to which, among other things, the Companies agree to undertake the Projects as
agents of the Agency and the Companies further agree to lease the Project Facilities
from the Agency and to pay all legal fees and expenses incurred by the Agency with
respect to the Projects;

(C)  Apaymentin lieu of tax agreement (the “Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement” or
the “PILOT") for each of the Projects by and between the Agency and the
Companies, pursuant to which the Companies will agree to make certain
payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facilities; and

(D)  Various certificates relating to the Project (the “Closing Documents”); and

_48-



|

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to the
representations by the Companies that the granting by the Agency of the Financial Assistance
with respect to the Projects will be in an inducement to the Companies to undertake the Projects
in Jefferson County, New York; and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Agency have agreed on a certain Payment in Lieu of
Taxes Agreement and Distribution Schedules to the Taxing Jurisdictions of such payments in lieu
of taxes in substantially the form and affect and appears at Exhibit “A” to this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1 The Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and
to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  The Project constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and

(C)  The acquisition of the Project Facilities and the lease of the Project Facilities to the
Companies will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general prosperity
and economic welfare of the citizens of Jefferson County, New York and the State
of New York and improve their standard of living; and

(D)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to grant to the Companies
the relief provided by the Payment In Lieu of Taxes Agreements, and to enter into
the Agency Documents upon the satisfaction of all conditions thereto.

Section 2 In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines that the
granting of the financial assistance by the Agency with respect to the Projects, through the
granting of various tax exemptions described herein, and set forth on the exhibits attached
hereto, will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Jefferson County, New York and the State of New York, and improve their
standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act.

Section 3 In consequence of the foregoing, and subject to the satisfactions of any
conditions as imposed herein or as may be required by the Act, the Agency hereby determines to:

(A)  Proceed with the Projects;
(B)  Acquire the Project Facilities;

(€)  Accept an Underlying Leases of the Projects on terms to be determined by the
Agency;

-49-



L W Wik o
A ]
V. VA

(D)  Lease the Project Facilities to the respective Companies pursuant to a Lease
Agreements on terms to be determined by the Agency;

(E) Enter into the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreements in the form and substance as
attached hereto; and

(F)  Execute and deliver the other Agency Documents upon terms and conditions
satisfactory to the Chief Executive Officer; and

(G)  Execute and deliver the Closing Documents upon terms and conditions
satisfactory to the Chief Executive Officer; and

(H)  Grantthe Financial Assistance with respect to the Projects.

Section 4 The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire a leasehold interest in the
Project Facilities pursuant to an Underlying Leases and to do all things necessary or appropriate
for the accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such
acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 5 The Agency is hereby authorized to lease the Project Facilities back to the
respective Companies pursuant to the Lease Agreements and to do all things necessary or
appropriate to renovate, construct and equip the Projects pursuant to the terms of the Lease
Agreements.

Section 6 (A) The Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby authorized, on
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agency Documents and, where appropriate, the
Secretary (or Assistant Secretary) of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the
Agency thereto and to attest the same, all in substantially the forms thereof presented to this
meeting, with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions thereto as the Chief Executive
Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chief Executive Officer to constitute conclusive
evidence of such approval.

(B) The Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is hereby further authorized,
on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives of the Agency
(as defined in and pursuant to the Lease Agreement).

Section 7 The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or
provided for by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and deliver all such
additional certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and
to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer,
employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing Resolution
and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the
Agency Documents binding upon the Agency.

-50-



Section 8 The Agency hereby determines and finds that the Project is a qualifying
industrial project, and falls within the provisions of the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exempt Policy, and
therefore the consent of the Affected Taxing Jurisdictions is not required.

Section 9 This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which
resulted as follows:

David Converse VOTING
lIohn Jennings VOTING
Robert E. Aliasso. Ir. VOTING
W. Edward Walldroff VOTING
Paul Warneck VOTING
William Johnson VOTING
Lisa L'Huillier VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared and duly adopted.

-51-



EXHIBIT “A” TO AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

_52-



EXHIBIT “A” TO AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

AND

OYANYSRTE 12 LLC

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT

DATED AS OF

RELATING TO THE PREMISES LOCATED AT
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON AND STATE OF NEW YORK

-53-



PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT

THIS PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT dated as of
(the “Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement’) by and between JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, a corporate governmental agency constituting a
public benefit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York,
having and office at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, New York 13601 (the “Agency”),
and OYA NYS RTE 12 LLC limited liability company organized under the laws of the State
of having its office at 700 University Boulevard, Juno Beach, Florida 33408 (the

“Company”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New
York (the “Enabling Act”) was duly enachd into law as Chapter 1030 of the Laws of 1969

of the State of New York; and

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act authorizes and provides for the creation of industrial
development agencies for the benefit of the several counties, cities, villages and towns in
the State of New York (the “State”) and empowers such agencies, among other things, to
acquire, construct, reconstruct, lease, improve, maintain, equip and dispose of land and any
building or other improvement, and all real and personal properties, including, but not
limited to, machinery and equipment deemed necessary in connection therewith, whether
or not now in existence or under construction, which shall be suitable for manufacturing,
warehousing, research, commercial or industrial purposes, in order to advance the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State
and to improve their standard of living; and

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act further authorizes each such agency, for the purpose of
carrying out any of its corporate purposes, to lease or sell any or all of its facilities, whether
then owned or thereafter acquired; and

WHEREAS, the Agency was created, pursuant to and in accordance with the
provisions of the Enabling Act, by Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State as amended
and constituting section 892-e of the General Municipal Law(collectively, with the Enabling
Act, the "Act”) and is empowered under the Act to undertake the Project (as hereinafter
defined) in order to so advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State and improve their standard of living; and

WHEREAS, the members of the Agency, adopted a resolution on October 3, 2019
(the “Preliminary Inducement Resolution”), pursuant to which the Agency agreed to
accept an application (the “Application”) from the Company and further agreed to consider
undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A)(i) the acquisition of an
interest in vacant land located at
New York (the “Land”); (ii) the construction of solar modules, racking to mount the solar
modules, inverters and transformers and assorted electrical components and wiring, all

Page - 1-of 20

-54-



located on the Land (collectively, the “Facility”); (iii) the acquisition and installation in and
at the Land and Facility of fixtures and equipment (the “Equipment” and together with the
Land and the Facility, the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting of certain financial assistance
in the form of potential exemptions from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes
and mortgage recording taxes (except as limited by Section 874 of the General Municipal
Law) (collectively the “Financial Assistance”); (C) the appointment of the Company or its
designee as an agent of the Agency in connection with the acquisition, construction,
installation, equipping and completion of the Project Facility; and (D) the lease of the Land,
Facility and Equipment by the Agency pursuant to a lease agreement from the Company to
the Agency; and the lease of the Project Facility back to the Company pursuant to a
sublease agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter
43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act’) and the
regulations (the "Regulations”) adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act,
“SEQRA"), the Agency adopted an Environmental Resolution on October 3, 2019, and
determined that the Project would not have a significant adverse effect on the
environment, and issued a negative declaration for the Project, a copy of which was
provided to and is binding upon the Agency (the “SEQRA Determination”); and

WHEREAS, by further resolutions adopted by the members of the Agency on
(collectively, the “Resolutions”), the Agency determined to grant the Financial
Assistance and to enter into a lease agreement (the “Agency Lease") between the Agency
and the Company and certain other documents related thereto and to the Project
(collectively with the Agency Lease, the "Basic Documents”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Agency Lease, (A) the Company will agree
(1) to cause the Project to be undertaken and completed, and (2} as agent of the Agency, to
undertake and complete the Project and (B) the Agency has leased the Project Facility to
the Company for a lease term ending on the earlier to occur of (1)
or (2) the date on which the Agency Lease is terminated pursuant to the optional
termination provisions thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Agency Lease grants to the Company certain options to acquire the
Project Facility from the Agency; and

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Agency Lease (the
“Closing”), (A) the Company will execute and deliver to the Agency a certain lease to
agency dated as of } (the “Company Lease”) by and between the
Company, as landlord and the Agency, as tenant pursuant to which the Company will lease
to the Agency the Land and all improvements and Equipment now or hereafter located on
the land (collectively, the “Premises”) for a lease term ending on . (B)
the Company and the Agency will execute and deliver the Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company will agree to pay certain payments in lieu of
taxes with respect to the Project Facility, (C) the Agency will file with the assessor and mail

Page - 2.0l 20

-55-



to the chief executive officer of each “affected tax jurisdiction” (within the meaning of such
quoted term in Section 854(16) of the Act) a copy of a New York State Board of Real
Property Services Form 412-a (the form required to be filed by the Agency in order for the
Agency to obtain a real property tax exemption with respect to the Project Facility under
Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law) (the “Real Property Tax Exemption Form")
relating to the Project Facility and the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, and (D) the
Agency will file with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance the form
entitled “IDA Appointment of Project Operator or Agent for Sales Tax Purposes” (the
form required to be filed pursuant to Section 874(9) of the Act) (the “Thirty-Day Sales Tax

Report”); and

WHEREAS, under the present provisions of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law of the State of New York (the “Real Property Tax Law”), the Agency is
required to pay no taxes or assessments upon any of the property acquired by it or under
its jurisdiction or supervision or control; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.6 of the Agency Lease, the
Company has agreed to make payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Project Facility
in an amount equivalent to normal taxes, provided that, so long as this Payment in Lieu of
Tax Agreement shall be in effect, the Company shall during the term of this Payment in Lieu
of Tax Agreement make payments in lieu of taxes in the amounts and in the manner
provided in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, and during such period the provisions
of Section 6.6 of the Agency Lease shall not control the amounts due as payment in lieu of
taxes with respect to that portion of the Project Facility which is covered by this Payment
in Lieu of Tax Agreement; and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to constitute this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement
a valid and binding agreement by and between the parties hereto in accordance with the
terms hereof have been done and performed, and the creation, execution and delivery of
this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement have in all respects been duly authorized by the

Agency and the Company;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the matters above recited, the parties hereto
formally covenant, agree and bind themselves as follows, to wit;
ARTICLE 1
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
SECTION 1.00. RECITALS AND DEFINITIONS.
The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if fully set forth. Terms not

otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Agency Lease,
dated as of by and between the Company and the Agency (the “Agency

Lease").

Page - 3 - of 20

-56-



SECTION 1.01. REPRESENTATIONS OF AND WARRANTIES BY THE AGENCY.
The Agency does hereby represent, warrant and covenant as follows:

(A) Power. The Agency is a public benefit corporation of the State, has been duly
established under the provisions of the Act, is validly existing under the provisions of the
Act and has the power under the laws of the State of New York to enter into the
transactions contemplated by this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement and to carry out the
transactions contemplated hereby and to perform and carry out all covenants and
obligations on its part to be performed under and pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax

Agreement hereunder.

the Act, its by-laws and the laws of the State to enter into this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and to perform and carry out all the
covenants and obligations on its part to be performed under and pursuant to this Payment
in Lieu of Tax Agreement. By proper corporate action on the part of its members, the
Agency has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement and the consummation of the transactions herein contemplated.

(B)  Authorization. The Agency is authorized and has the corporate power under

(C) Conflicts. The Agency is not prohibited from entering into this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement and discharging and performing all covenants and obligations on its
part to be performed under and pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by the
terms, conditions or provisions of any order, judgment, decree, law, ordinance, rule or
regulation of any court or other agency or authority of government, or any agreement or
instrument to which the Agency is a party or by which the Agency is bound.

SECTION 1.02. REPRESENTATIONS OF AND WARRANTIES BY THE COMPANY.
The Company does hereby represent, warrant and covenant as follows:

(A) Power. The Company is a limited liability company duly authorized to do
business in the State of New York and has the power under the laws of the State to enter
into this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and
to perform and carry out all covenants and obligations on its part to be performed under
and pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, and by proper action of its
members has been duly authorized to execute, deliver and perform this Payment in Lieu of

Tax Agreement.

(B) Authorization. The Company is authorized and has the power under its
articles of organization, operating agreement and the laws of the State to enter into this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and to
perform and carry out all covenants and obligations on its part to be performed under and
pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement. By proper action of its members, the

Page - 4 - of 20

-57-



Company has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement and the consummation of the transactions herein contemplated.

(C)  Conflicts. The Company is not prohibited from entering into this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement and discharging and performing all covenants and obligations on its
part to be performed under and pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by (and
the execution, delivery and performance of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and the fulfillment of and
compliance with the provisions of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement will not conflict
with or violate or constitute a breach of or a default under) the terms, conditions or
provisions of its Articles of Organization or Operating Agreement or any other restriction,
law, rule, regulation or order of any court or other agency or authority of government, or
any contractual limitation, restriction or outstanding indenture, deed of trust, mortgage,
loan agreement, other evidence of indebtedness or any other agreement or instrument to
which the Company is a party or by which it or any of its property is bound, and neither the
Company’s entering into this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement nor the Company’s
discharging and performing all covenants and obligations on its part to be performed
under and pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement will be in conflict with or
result in a breach of or constitute (with due notice and/or lapse of time) a default under
any of the foregoing, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien of any nature upon
any of the property of the Company under the terms of any of the foregoing, and this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement is the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws relating to
or affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity (regardless of
whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law).

(D}  Governmental Consent. No consent, approval or authorization of, or filing,
registration or qualification with, any governmental or public authority on the part of the
Company is required as a condition to the execution, delivery or performance of this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by the Company or as a condition to the validity of this
Paymentin Lieu of Tax Agreement.

ARTICLE I
COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

SECTION 2.01. TAX-EXEMPT STATUS OF THE PROJECT FACILITY.

(A) Assessment of the Project Facility, Pursuant to Section 874 of the Act and
Section 412-a of the Real Property Tax Law, the parties hereto understand that, upon
acquisition of a leasehold interest in the Project Facility by the Agency and the filing by the
Agency of a New York State Board of Real Property Services Form RP-412-a (a “Real
Property Tax Exemption Form") with respect to the Project Facility, and for so long
thereafter as the Agency shall own such leasehold interest in the Project Facility, the
Project Facility shall be assessed by the various taxing entities having jurisdiction over the

Page - 5. 0o 20

_58-



Project Facility, including, without limitation, any county, city, school district, town, village
or other political unit or units wherein the Project Facility is located (such taxing entities
being sometimes collectively hereinafter referred to as the “Taxing Entities”, and each of
such Taxing Entities being sometimes individually hereinafter referred to as a “Taxing
Entity”) as exempt upon the assessment rolls of the respective Taxing Entities prepared
subsequent to the acquisition by the Agency of the leasehold interest to the Project Facility
created by the Agency Lease and the filing of the Real Property Tax Exemption Forms. The
Company shall, promptly following acquisition by the Agency of the leasehold interest to
the Project Facility created by the Company Lease, take such action as may be necessary to
ensure that the Project Facility shall be assessed as exempt upon the assessment rolls of
the respective Taxing Entities prepared subsequent to such acquisition by the Agency,
including ensuring that a Real Property Tax Exemption Form shall be filed with the
appropriate officer or officers of each respective Taxing Entity responsible for assessing
properties on behalf of each such Taxing Entity (each such officer being hereinafter
referred to as an “dssessor”). For so long thereafter as the Agency shall own such
leasehold interest in the Project Facility, the Company shall take such further action as may
be necessary to maintain such exempt assessment with respect to each Taxing Entity. The
parties hereto understand that the Project Facility shall not be entitled to such tax-exempt
status on the tax rolls of any Taxing Entity until the first tax year of such Taxing Entity
following the tax status date of such Taxing Entity occurring subsequent to the date upon
which the Agency becomes the owner of record of such leasehold interest in the Project
Facility and the Real Property Tax Exemption Forms are filed with the Assessors. Pursuant
to the provisions of the Agency Lease, the Company will be required to pay all taxes and
assessments lawfully levied and/or assessed against the Project Facility, including taxes
and assessments levied for the current tax year and all subsequent tax years until the
Project Facility shall be entitled to exempt status on the tax rolls of the respective Taxing
Entities. The Agency will cooperate with the Company to obtain and preserve the tax-
exempt status of the Project Facility.

(B)  Special Assessments. The parties hereto understand that the tax exemption
extended to the Agency by Section 874 of the Act and Section 412-a of the Real Property
Tax Law does not entitle the Agency to exemption from special assessments and special ad
valorem levies. Pursuant to the Agency Lease, and notwithstanding anything hereto to the
contrary, the Company will be required to pay all special assessments and special ad
valorem levies lawfully levied and/or assessed against the Project Facility.

SECTION 2.02. PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES.

(A) Agreement to Make Payments. The Company agrees that it shall make
annual payments in lieu of property taxes in the amounts hereinafter provided to the
respective Taxing Entities entitled to receive same pursuant to the provisions hereof. The
Company also agrees to give the Assessors a copy of this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement. The payments due hereunder shall be paid by the Company to Agency for
distribution to the Taxing Entities pursuant to the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy
(the Agency being hereinafter referred to as the “Receivers of Taxes”).

Page - 6 - of 20

-59-



(B)  Valuation of the Project Facility.

(1) The value of the Project Facility for purposes of determining payments in
lieu of taxes due hereunder (hereinafter referred to as the “Assessed Value”) shall
be determined by the appropriate Assessors. The Company agrees to give the
Assessors a copy of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement. The parties hereto
agree that the Assessors shall (a) appraise the Land in the same manner as other
similar properties in the general area of the Land, but without giving effect to the
Improvements (as defined herein); (b) place an Assessed Value upon the Land,
equalized if necessary by using the appropriate equalization rates as apply in the
assessment and levy of real property taxes, {c} appraise the Facility and any portion
of the Equipment assessable as real property pursuant to the New York Real
Property Tax Law (collectively with the Facility, the “Improvements”) in the same
manner as other similar properties in the general area of the Improvements, and (d)
place an Assessed Value upon the Improvements, equalized if necessary by using the
appropriate equalization rates as apply in the assessment and levy of real property
taxes. The Company shall be entitled to written notice of the initial determination of
the Assessed Value of the Improvements and of any change in the Assessed Value of

the Land or the Improvements.

(2}  If the Company is dissatisfied with the amount of the Assessed Value
of the Improvements as initially established or with the amount of the Assessed
Value of the Land or the Improvements as changed, and if the Company shall have
given written notice of such dissatisfaction to the appropriate Assessor and the
Agency within thirty (30) days of receipt by the Company of written notice of the
initial establishment of such Assessed Value of the Improvements, or of a change in
such Assessed Value of the Land or the Improvements, then the Company shall be
entitled to protest before, and to be heard by, the appropriate Assessor and the
Agency. If the Agency, the Company and any Assessor shall fail to reach agreement
as to the proper Assessed Value of the Project Facility for purposes of determining
payments in lieu of taxes due under this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, then the
Company shall have all of the rights and remedies of a taxpayer as if and to the same
extent as if the Company were the owner of the Project Facility, with respect to any
proposed assessment or change in assessment with respect to the Project Facility by
any of the affected Taxing Entities and likewise shall be entitled to protest before
and be heard by the appropriate assessors or Board of Assessment Review, and shall
be entitled to take any and all appropriate appeals or initiate any proceedings to
review the validity or amount of any assessment. Any payments in lieu of taxes due
upon the Project Facility may not be withheld by the Company pending
determination of the Assessed Value by the appropriate tribunal.

(C)  Amount of Payments in Lieu of Taxes. The payments in lieu of taxes to be
paid by the Company to the Receivers of Taxes annually on behalf of each Taxing Entity
pursuant to the terms of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be computed
separately for each Taxing Entity as follows:

Page - 7-af 20

-60-



(1)  First, determine the amount of general taxes and general assessments
(hereinafter referred to as the “Normal Tax”) which would be payable to each
Taxing Entity if the Land was owned by the Company and not the Agency by
multiplying (a) the Assessed Value of the Land determined pursuant to Subsection
(B)(1)(a) of this Section 2.02, by (b) the tax rate or rates of such Taxing Entity that
would be applicable to the Land if the Land was owned by the Company and not the

Agency.

(2)  In each tax year during the term of this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement, commencing on the first tax year following the date on which the Land
shall be assessed as exempt on the assessment roll of any Taxing Entity, the amount
payable by the Company to the Receivers of Taxes on behalf of each Taxing Entity as
a payment in lieu of property tax pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement
with respect to the Land shall be an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%)
of the Normal Tax due each Taxing Entity with respect to the Land for such tax year,
as determined pursuant to subsection C(1) of this Section 2.02.

(3)  Next, determine the Normal Tax which would be payable to each
Taxing Entity if the Facility and any portion of the Equipment assessable as real
property pursuant to the New York Real Property Tax Law (collectively with the
Facility, the “Improvements”) were owned by the Company and not the Agency by
multiplying (a) the Assessed Value of the Improvements determined pursuant to
Subsection (B) of this Section 2.02, by (b) the tax rate or rates of such Taxing Entity
that would be applicable to the Improvements if the Improvements were owned by
the Company and not the Agency. For the avoidance of doubt, determination of the
Normal Tax that would be payable with respect to the Improvements under this
subsection shall be solely for reference, and the amounts payable by Company as a
payment in lieu of tax with respect to Improvements under this Payment in Lieu of
Tax Agreement will be determined in accordance with subsection (4) below.

(4)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, specific reference is made to the Table
at Schedule “1” to this Agreement, which forms the basis for the calculation of the
annual PILOT Payments by the Agency. In each tax year during the term of this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, commencing on the first tax year following the
date on which the Improvements shall be assessed as exempt on the assessment roll
of any Taxing Entity, the amount payable by the Company to the Receivers of Taxes
on behalf of each Taxing Entity as a payment in lieu of property tax pursuant to this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement with respect to the Improvements shall be in the
amounts reflected on the following table with respect to the Improvements:

Page - 8 - of 20

-6]1-



Tax Year Commencing During Total PILOT Payment

Fiscal Year
1 $35,000.00
2 $33,404.58
3 $32,818.97
4 $32,233.35
5 $31,647.74
6 $31,062.12
7 $30,476.51
8 $29,890.90
9 $29,305.28
10 $28,719.67
11 $28,134.05
12 $27,548.44
13 $26,962.83
14 $26,377.21
15 $25,791.60
16 and thereafter 100% of Normal Taxes

(5) In each tax year during the term of this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement, commencing on the first tax year following the date on which any
portion of the Project Facility shall be assessed as exempt on the assessment roll of
any Taxing Entity, the amount payable by the Company to the Receivers of Taxes on
behalf of each Taxing Entity as a payment in lieu of property tax pursuant to this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement with respect to the Project Facility shall be the
sum of (a) the amount due each Taxing Entity with respect to the Land for such tax
year, as determined pursuant to Subsection (C)(2) of this Section 2.02, plus (b} the
amount due each Taxing Entity with respect to the Improvements for such tax year,
as determined pursuant to Subsection (C)(4) of this Section 2.02.

(6)  The parties recognize that the purpose of the Project is to create or
retain permanent private sector jobs in Jefferson County. Accordingly, the parties
have agreed that the amount of payments in lieu of taxes payable with respect to the
Addition Premises shall bear a direct relationship to the success or lack of success of
the Project in achieving this goal. Therefore, as specific inducement for Agency
entering into this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, the Company shall retain and
create the average number of full time equivalent employees (1820 hours equaling
one full time equivalent employee ) employed at the Project Facility or equivalent
jobs set forth within the Company’s Application, during the term of this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement. The Company pledges commercially reasonable efforts to
hire persons from the Jefferson County, New York work force. The Company shall
promptly provide employment figures to the Agency as requested.

Page - 9 - of 20

-62-



(D) Additional Amounts in Lieu of Taxes. Commencing on the first tax year
following the date on which Battery Storage is added to the Project Facility (“Additional
Facilities”) the Company agrees to make additional annual payments in lieu of property
taxes with respect to such Additional Facilities (such additional payments being hereinafter
collectively referred to as “Additional Payments”) to the Receivers of Taxes with respect to
such Additional Facilities, as follows:

Additional Payments
$1,809.10
$1,772.92
$1,737.46
$1,702.71
$1,668.66
$1,635.28
$1,602.58
$1,570.53
$1,539.12

10 $1,508.33

11 $1,478.17

12 $1,448.60

13 $1,419.63

14 $1,391.24

15 $1,363.41

~
@
©
~

O 00N U W

(E)  Statements. Pursuantto Section 858{15) of the Act, the Agency agrees to give
each Taxing Entity a copy of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement within fifteen (15) days
of the execution and delivery hereof, together with a request that a copy hereof be given to
the appropriate officer or officers of the respective Taxing Entities responsible for
preparing the tax rolls for said Tax Entities (each, a “Tax Billing Officer”) and a request
that said Tax Billing Officers submit to the Company and to the appropriate Receiver of
Taxes periodic statements specifying the amount and due date or dates of the payments
due each Taxing Entity hereunder, such periodic statements to be submitted to the
Company at approximately the times that tax bills are mailed by such Taxing Entities.

(F)  Time of Payments. The Company agrees to pay the amounts due hereunder
to the Receivers of Taxes for the benefit of each particular Taxing Entity in any fiscal tax
year to the appropriate Receiver of Taxes within the period that such Taxing Entity allows
payment of taxes levied in such fiscal tax year without penalty. The Company shall be
entitled to receive receipts for such payments. Unless otherwise indicated by the Tax
Billing Office for said Tax Entities, the Company agrees to pay annually to the Receiver of
Taxes as a payment in lieu of taxes, on or before September 1 of each year beginning
February 1, 2021, and thereafter February 1 of each year during the term hereof for School,
County and Town Taxes, respectively, an amount equal to the annual PILOT Payments.

Page « 10 - of 20

-63-



(G)  Method of Pavment. All payments by the Company hereunder shall be paid
to the Receivers of Taxes in lawful money of the United States of America. The Receivers of
Taxes shall in turn distribute the amounts so paid to the various Taxing Entities entitled to

same.

SECTION 2.03 CREDIT FOR TAXES PAID.

(A) Amount of Credit. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the
obligation of the Company to make the payments provided in Section 2.0Z of this Payment
in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be in addition to any and all other taxes and governmental
charges of any kind whatsoever which the Company may be required to pay under the
Agency Lease. It is understood and agreed, however, that, should the Company pay in any
fiscal tax year to any Taxing Entity any amounts in the nature of general property taxes,
general assessments, service charges or other governmental charges of a similar nature
levied and/or assessed upon the Project Facility or the interest therein of the Company or
the occupancy thereof by the Company (but not including, by way of example, (1) sales and
use taxes, and (2) special assessments, special ad valorem levies or governmental charges
in the nature of utility charges, including but not limited to water, solid waste, sewage
treatment or sewer or other rents, rates or charges), then the Company’s obligation to
make payments in lieu of property taxes attributed to such fiscal tax year to such Taxing
Entity hereunder shall be reduced by the amounts which the Company shall have so paid to
such Taxing Entity in such fiscal tax year, but there shall be no cumulative or retroactive
credit as to any payment in lieu of property taxes due to any other Taxing Entity or as to
any payment in lieu of property taxes due to such Taxing Entity in any other fiscal tax year.

(B) Method of Claiming Credits. If the Company desires to claim a credit against
any particular payment in lieu of tax due hereunder, the Company shall give the governing
body of the affected Taxing Entity and the Agency prior written notice of its intention to
claim any credit pursuant to the provision of this Section 2.03, said notice to be given by
the Company at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which such payment in lieu of tax
is due pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.02(G) hereof. In the event that the governing
body of the appropriate Taxing Entity desires to contest the Company’s right to claim such
credit, then said governing body, the Agency and the Company shall each select an
arbitrator in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association, each of
whom shall meet the qualifications set forth in Section 2.02(B) hereof, which arbitrators
shall, at the sole cost and expense of the Company, determine whether the Company is
entitled to claim any credit pursuant to the provisions of this Section 2.03 and, if so, the
amount of the credit to which the Company is entitled. It is understood that the arbitrators
are empowered to confirm the amount of the credit claimed by the Company or to
determine a lower or higher credit. When the Company shall have given notice, as
provided herein, that it claims a credit, the amount of any payment in lieu of property taxes
due hereunder against which the credit may be claimed may be withheld (to the extent of
the credit claimed by the Company, but only to the extent that such credit may be claimed
against said payment in lieu of taxes pursuant to the provisions of this Section 2.03) until
the decision of the arbitrators is rendered. After the decision of the arbitrators is rendered,
the payment in lieu of taxes due with respect to any reduction or disallowance by the

Pags - 11 - of 20

-64-



arbitrators in the amount of the credit claimed by the Company shall, to the extent
withheld as aforesaid, be immediately due and payable and shall be paid by the Company

within thirty (30) days of said decision.
SECTION 2.04. LATE PAYMENTS.

(A)  First Month. Pursuant to Section 874(5) of the Act, if the Company shall fail
to make any payment required by this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement when due, the
Company shall pay the same, together with a late payment penalty equal to five percent

(5%) of the amount due.

(B) Thereafter. If the Company shall fail to make any payment required by this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement when due and such delinquency shall continue beyond
the first month, the Company’s obligation to make the payment so in default shall continue
as an obligation of the Company to the affected Taxing Entity until such payment in default
shall have been made in full, and the Company shall pay the same to the affected Taxing
Entity together with (1) a late payment penalty of one percent (1%) per month for each
month, or part thereof, that the payment due hereunder is delinquent beyond the first
- month, plus (2) interest thereon, to the extent permitted by law, at the greater of (a) one
percent (1%) per month, or (b) the rate per annum which would be payable if such amount

were delinquent taxes, until so paid in full.

ARTICLE III
LIMITED OBLIGATION

SECTION 3.01, NO RECOURSE; LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE AGENCY.

(A) No Recourse. All obligations, covenants, and agreements of the Agency
contained in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be deemed to be the obligations,
covenants, and agreements of the Agency and not of any member, officer, agent, servant or
employee of the Agency in his individual capacity, and no recourse under or upon any
obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, or
otherwise based upon or in respect of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, or for any
claim based thereon or otherwise in respect thereof, shall be had against any past, present
or future member, officer, agent (other than the Company), servant or employee, as such, of
the Agency or any successor public benefit corporation or political subdivision or any
person executing this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement on behalf of the Agency, either
directly or through the Agency or any successor public benefit corporation or political
subdivision or any person so executing this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, it being
expressly understood that this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement is a corporate obligation,
and that no such personal liability whatever shall attach to, or is or shall be incurred by,
any such member, officer, agent (other than the Company), servant or employee of the
Agency or of any successor public benefit corporation or political subdivision or any person
so executing this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement under or by reason of the obligations,
covenants or agreements contained in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement or implied

Paga - 12- 0l 20

_65-



therefrom; and that any and all such personal liability of, and any and all such rights and
claims against, every such member, officer, agent (other than the Company), servant or
employee under or by reason of the obligations, covenants or agreements contained in this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement or implied therefrom are, to the extent permitted by
law, expressly waived and released as a condition of, and as a consideration for, the
execution of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by the Agency.

(B) Limited Obligation. The obligations, covenants and agreements of the Agency
contained herein shall not constitute or give rise to an obligation of the State of New York
or Jefferson County, New York, and neither the State of New York nor Jefferson County,
New York shall be liable thereon, and further such obligations, covenants and agreements
shall not constitute or give rise to a general obligation of the Agency, but rather shall
constitute limited obligations of the Agency payable solely from the revenues of the Agency
derived and to be derived from the lease, sale or other disposition of the Project Facility
(except for revenues derived by the Agency with respect to the Unassigned Rights, as

defined in the Agency Lease).

(C)  Further Limitation. Notwithstanding any provision of this Payment in Lieu of
Tax Agreement to the contrary, the Agency shall not be obligated to take any action
pursuant to any provision hereof unless (1) the Agency shall have been requested to do so
in writing by the Company, and (2] if compliance with such request is reasonably expected
to result in the incurrence by the Agency (or any of its members, officers, agents, servants
or employees) of any liability, fees, expenses or other costs, the Agency shall have received
from the Company security or indemnity and an agreement from the Company to defend
and hold harmless the Agency satisfactory to the Agency for protection against all such
liability, however remote, and for the reimbursement of all such fees, expenses and other

costs.

ARTICLE 1V
EVENTS OF DEFAULT

SECTION 4.01. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.

Any one or more of the following events shall constitute an event of default under
this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, and the terms “Event of Default’ or "default” shall
mean, whenever they are used in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, any one or more
of the following events:

(A)  Failure of the Company to pay when due any amount due and payable by the
Company pursuant to this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement and continuance of said
failure for a period of fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Company stating that

such payment is due and payable;

(B) Failure of the Company to observe and perform any other covenant,
condition or agreement on its part to be observed and performed hereunder (other than as

Pago - 13+ of 20

_66-



referred to in paragraph (A) above) and continuance of such failure for a period of thirty
(30) days after written notice to the Company specifying the nature of such failure and
requesting that it be remedied; provided that if such default cannot reasonably be cured
within such thirty (30) day period and if the Company shall have commenced action to cure
the breach of covenant, condition or agreement within said thirty (30) day period and
thereafter diligently and expeditiously proceeds to cure the same, such thirty (30) day
period shall be extended for so long as the Company shall require in the exercise of due
diligence to cure such default, it being agreed that no such extension shall be for a period in
excess of ninety (90) days in the aggregate from the date of default;

(C) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Company contained in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall prove to have been
false or incorrect in any material respect on the date when made or on the effective date of
this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement and (1) shall be materially adverse to the Agency at
the time when the notice referred to below shall have been given to the Company and (2} if
curable, shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice of such
incorrectness shall have been given to a responsible officer of the Company, provided that
if such incorrectness cannot reasonably be cured within said thirty-day period and the
Company shall have commenced action to cure the incorrectness within said thirty-day
period and, thereafter, diligently and expeditiously proceeds to cure the same, such thirty-
day period shall be extended for so Jong as the Company shall require, in the exercise of
due diligence, to cure such default; or

(D) A default under the Company Lease, the Agency Lease or the Project
Agreement.

SECTION 4.0Z. REMEDIES ON DEFAULT.

(A)  General. Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred with respect to
this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, the Agency (or if such Event of Default concerns a
payment required to be made hereunder to any Taxing Entity, then with respect to such
Event of Default such Taxing Entity) may take whatever action at law or in equity as may
appear necessary or desirable to collect the amount then in default or to enforce the
performance and observance of the obligations, agreements and covenants of the Company
under this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement.

(B)  Cross-Default. In addition, an Event of Default hereunder shall constitute an
event of default under Article X of the Agency Lease. Upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default hereunder resulting from a failure of the Company to make any payment required
hereunder, the Agency shall have, as a remedy therefor under the Agency Lease, among
other remedies, the right to terminate the Agency Lease and convey the Project Facility to
the Company, thus subjecting the Project Facility to immediate full taxation pursuant to

Section 520 of the Real Property Tax Law of the State.

(C)  Separate Suits. Each such Event of Default shall give rise to a separate cause
of action hereunder and separate suits may be brought hereunder as each cause of action

Page - 14 - ol 20

_67-



arises. Each such Event of Default shall give rise to a separate cause of action hereunder
and separate suits may be brought hereunder as each cause of action arises.

(D) Venue. The Company irrevocably agrees that any suit, action or other legal
proceeding arising out of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement may be brought in the
courts of record of the State, consents to the jurisdiction of each such court in any such suit,
action or proceeding, and waives any objection which it may have to the laying of the venue
of any such suit, action or proceeding in any of such courts.

SECTION 4.03. PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY'S FEES AND EXPENSES.

Pursuant to Section 874(6) of the Act, if the Company should default in performing
any of its obligations, covenants or agreements under this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement and the Agency or any Taxing Entity should employ attorneys or incur other
expenses for the collection of any amounts payable hereunder or for the enforcement of
performance or observance of any obligation, covenant or agreement on the part of the
Company herein contained, the Company agrees that it will, on demand therefor, pay to the
Agency or such Taxing Entity, as the case may be, not only the amounts adjudicated due
hereunder, together with the late payment penalty and interest due thereon, but also the
reasonable fees and disbursements of such attorneys and all other expenses, costs and
disbursements so incurred, whether or not an action is commenced.

SECTION 4.04. REMEDIES; WAIVER AND NOTICE.

(A) No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
Agency or any Taxing Entity is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or
remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given under this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.

(B) Delay. No delay or omission in exercising any right or power accruing upon
the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder shall impair any such right or power or
shall be construed to he a waiver thereof, but any such right or power may be exercised
from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

(C)  Natice Not Required. In order to entitle the Agency or any Taxing Entity to
exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement, it shall not be
necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be expressly required in this
Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement.

(P) No Waiver. In the event any provision contained in this Payment in Lieu of
Tax Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter duly waived by the other
party so empowered to act, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived
and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach hereunder. No waiver,
amendment, release or modification of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be
established by conduct, custom or course of dealing,

Page -15- 01 20

-68-



ARTICLEV
MISCELLANEOQOUS

SECTION 5.01. TERM.

(A) General. This Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall become effective and
the obligations of the Company shall arise absolutely and unconditionally upon the
approval of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by resolution of the Agency and the
execution and delivery of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement by the Company and the
Agency. Unless otherwise provided by amendment hereof, this Payment in Lieu of Tax
Agreement shall continue to remain in effect until the earlier to occur of (1)
or (2) the date on which the Project Facility is reconveyed by the
Agency to the Company pursuant to Article VII of the Agency Lease.

(B) Extended Term. In the event that (1) the Project Facility shall be reconveyed
to the Company, (2) on the date on which the Company obtains the Agency’s interest in the
Project Facility, the Project Facility shall be assessed as exempt upon the assessment roll of
any one or more of the Taxing Entities, and (3) the fact of obtaining title to the Agency's
interest in the Project Facility shall not immediately obligate the Company to make pro-rata
tax payments pursuant to legislation similar to Chapter 635 of the 1978 Laws of the State
{codified as subsection 3 of Section 302 of the Real Property Tax Law and Section 520 of
the Real Property Tax Law), this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect and the Company shall be obligated to make payments to the Receiver of
Taxes in amounts equal to those amounts which would be due from the Company to the
respective Taxing Entities if the Project Facility were owned by the Company and not the
Agency until the first tax year in which the Company shall appear on the tax rolls of the
various Taxing Entities having jurisdiction over the Project Facility as the legal owner of
record of the Project Facility.

SECTION 5.02. FORM OF PAYMENTS.

The amounts payable under this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be payable
in such coin and currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment shall be
legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

SECTION 5.03. COMPANY ACTS.

Where the Company is required to do or accomplish any act or thing hereunder, the
Company may cause the same to be done or accomplished with the same force and effect as

if done or accomplished by the Company.

Pago - 16- of 20

-69-



SECTION 5.04. AMENDMENTS.

This Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement may not be effectively amended, changed,
modified, altered or terminated except by an instrument in writing executed by the parties

hereto.

SECTION 5.05. NOTICES.

(A)  General. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be
in writing and may be personally served, telecopied or sent by courier service or United
States mail and shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when (1) delivered in
person or by courier to the applicable address stated below, (2) when received by telecopy
or (3) three business days after deposit in the United States, by United States mail
(registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, property
addressed), or (4) when delivered by such other means as shall provide the sender with
documentary evidence of such delivery, or when delivery is refused by the addressee, as
evidenced by the affidavit of the Person who attempted to effect such delivery.

(B) Notices Given by Taxing Entities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notices of
assessment or reassessment of the Project Facility and other notices given by a Taxing
Entity under Article II hereof shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when
given by the Taxing Entity in the same manner in which similar notices are given to owners
of taxable properties by such Taxing Entity.

(C) Addresses. The addresses to which notices, certificates and other
communications hereunder shall be delivered are as follows;

IF TO THE COMPANY:

OYANYSRte 12 LLC

700 Universe Boulevard
Juno Beach, Florida 33408
Attn:

WITH A COPY TO:
Hodgson Russ LLP
605 Third Ave, Suite 2300

New York, New York 10158
Attn: Daniel A. Spitzer, Esq.

Page - 17 - ol 20

-70-



IF TO THE AGENCY:

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Ave

Watertown, New York 13601

Attention: Donald Alexander, CEO

WITH A COPY TO:

Barclay Damon LLP

120 Washington Street, Suite 500
Watertown, New York 13601
Attn: Joseph W. Russell, Esq.

(D} Copies. A copy of any notice given hereunder by the Company which affects
in any way a Taxing Entity shall also be given to the chief executive officer of such Taxing

Entity.
IF TO THE AGENCY:

Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Ave

Watertown, New York 13601

Attention: Donald Alexander, CEO

WITH A COPY TO:

Barclay Damon LLP

120 Washington Street, Suite 500
Watertown, New York 13601
Attn: Joseph W. Russell, Esq.

(D)  Copies. A copy of any notice given hereunder by the Company which affects
in any way a Taxing Entity shall also be given to the chief executive officer of such Taxing

Entity.

(E) Change of Address. The Agency and the Company may, by notice given
hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices,

certificates and other communications shall be sent,

SECTION 5.06. BINDING EFFECT.
This Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be

binding upon, the Agency, the Company and their respective successors and assigns. The
provisions of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement are intended to be for the benefit of

the Agency and the respective Taxing Entities.

Page - 18- af 20

-71-



SECTION 5.07. SEVERABILITY.

If any article, section, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or
portion of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall for any reason be held or adjudged
to be invalid or illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such article,
section, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, provision or portion so adjudged
invalid, illegal or unenforceable shall be deemed separate, distinct and independent and the
remainder of this Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be and remain in full force and
effect and shall not be invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise
affected by such holding or adjudication.

SECTION 5.08. COUNTERPARTS.

This Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one

and the same instrument.
SECTION 5.09. APPLICABLE LAW.

This Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement shall be governed by and counstrued in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the Company have caused this Payment in
Lieu of Tax Agreement to be executed in their respective names by duly authorized officers
thereof, all being done as of the date first above written.

JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BY:

Donald (EI.".Alexander, CEO

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) ss.
COUNTY OF Jefferson )
Onthe___dayof _  _ __ ,beforeme, the undersigned, a notary public in and for

said state, personally appeared Donald C Alexander personally known to me or proved to me
on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and that
by his signature on the instrument, the individual or the person upon behalf of which the
individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Publlc

Page - 19 - of 20

_79-



OYANYSRTE 12 LLC

By: .

Name:

Title: Authorized Officer
STATE OF NEW YORK )

) ss.
COUNTY OF )
Onthe __dayof before me, the undersigned, a notary public in

and for said state, personally appeared personally known to me or

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the
same in his/her capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument, the individual or
the person upon behalf of which the individual acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

Signature Page to PILOT Agrcement
Page 2 of 2

Page - 20 - of 20

-73-



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF LAND

-74-



Schedule 1
QYA Project - NYS Rt 12

Froject impuets In Yelow gt Y B AR e bjgrmet 1 g P ¥
project Sroject Size F18Y No PILOT First Year S 3500000
(M) aC tncentives
Total Project MW AC 5 Sie 1 5 $ 4 470,00000 Pro-Rata
Projoct FMV $ 447000000 Se2 0 s -
Siraight Line Dapreclation Termny 25 Swe3 o $ = Town of Odeans 3 -
Generation Pee Year KWH (From Aporeisal 3 10.960.00 Seed 0 s . Cricans Special Disiricts s 561553
PPA SMWH (From Appralsal Repor) 3 & Ste 5 o s .
NYSERDA Recommondafion of 3% $ 5400 Totat 5 $ 4470.000.00 T.L Central School 3 2078777
T Gentral (Library} s 60968
PILOT inputs =TT i e 1 -~ County s 1429228
Discount Rate: B% Town¢f Grieans Totsl Special Disticts $ 642520
PILOT Duration (Years) 1 Oricans Special Districts st
Proposed PILOT Sw i 549909
Yearly Escalation % 20% T.. Central School s 108270 0593079 Total Qrisans $ 551553
T.§ Contral (Library) s 018114 Totak T.1. School S 2156745
First Year Dectining SMW §  ragans County s 7.29183 0.406921 Tolal County S 1424223
Totai Tax Rate s 1935694 Grand Tolal S 4142520
est 1 2 3 B 5 q 7 ] B 0 n 2 It 14 %
Depreciated Vakie (Stralght Line) $4,47000000 $4.291.20000 $4,11240000 5393360000 S$3754200.00 $357600000 $3397.70000 $321840000 S303060000 $2860.800.00 $2682000.00 $2503.20000 $2324,40000 $2,145600.00 §1.966,800.00
Total Yearly Declining. Amount S 3500000 S 3340456 $ 3281897  $ 3223035 S 364774 5106213 $ 047651 § 2986090 S 2030528 S 2871967 § 2813405 S 2754844 5 2696283 $ 2637721 S 2579160
SMW AG $ 700000 S 668092 S G563 § 644667 S 632955 § 621243 § 609530 $§ 597848 $ 586108 3 574393 §  S62681 § 550960 § 5392657 § 327544 § 595832
HeY $263,820.84
Full Taxation (Project Life) 3 8652550 S 8306448 S 7060348 § 7614244 § 728142 § 6922040 § 6575038 5 6229936 $ 588574 § 5537632 S 5191530 § 4845428 S 4499326 §  41SR2 §  IBOTLZR
SAMW AC S 1730510 S 1661290 § 1592080 3 1522645 § 1453628 S 1361408 5 1335188 3 1245067 $ 1176747 $ 1107526 § 1038306 § 900066 § 899365 §  B3IGAS 3 761424
NPV $574,879.96
Tax Abstement 5% krad N S H% 45% 6% 5% ah “n N 6N s o%
Avernga Tax Abalement Quer 15 Years 43%

-75-



Schedule 1

Project inputs in Vellow
Total Project v/ AC 8
Project FMV $ 4,470,000.00
Shroight Line Depreciation Tenn 2%
Goneration Per Year KWH (From Appraisal 3 1095000
PPA SMWH (From Appraisal Report) $ 8370
NYSERDA Recommendaicn of 3% $ 549909
PRLOT inpras
Discount Rale &%
PILOT Duration (Years) 11
Praposed PILOT Whw s 549900
Yearty Escalation % 20%
First Year Declining $/IMW $ 700000
Yo N
Depredated Value (Straight Line) $ 4,470.000.00
Total Yearly Declining Amount $ 3500000
AW AC s 7.00000
NPV $263,630.84
Full Taxation {Projact Lie) 3 BAGST19
MW AC S 1693144
NPY $562.466.72
Tax Abatement S1%
Average Tax Abatement Over 15 Yeary 42%

$ 4.281,200.00

» o

S 3340458
6.680.92

81,270.89
16,254.18

$ 4,112,400.00

$

“o»

S 22.810.97
6,563.79

77.884.61
15.576.92

OYA Project - Blanchard Road 1

R R ™

. Puwjpct Size FMV No
Project (M) AT Incentives
Sha 1 5 S 4,470,00000
Ste2 ° $ .
Sne 3 0 $
See § o 3
SHes ) s
Total 5 $ 4.470,000.00
A T e Ay
Town of Orleans 3560w
Town of Orleans 1440w
Orleans Special Olsticts
T.1. Central Schoot 3,56Aw
T Central {Library)
County 3.56%w
Lo, Gentral School 1.44Mw
Caunty 1440w
Tolad Tax Rale
. s s
$3.903.600.00 $3754.800.00  $3.576,000.00
5 3223335 S NG44 5 3106213
S 6A4667 S 532955 5 621243
S 7445832 5 THM203 §  GI72674
$ 1489906 § 1422241 S 1354515
Ay 8% e

s 125627
$ 1062770
3 018114
s 7.2918)
3 9.07966
$ 729183
s 3572842
7 8
$3397,20000  $3,218,400.00
$ 0,476.51 5 29.800.50
3 8,09530 5,978.18
§ 8133946 §  €095397
s 12,067.89 § 12,190.63
o a4

-76-

—t
0.593079
0.406821
D.564600
0.4453%8
[ 8
$3,032.600.00 $20860,800.00
$ 2930528 5 2871967
s 586108 § 574353
$ 5756088 3 54,180.60
3 1151338 § 1083612
2% w0

T L i Sl

PILOT First Year

Pro-Rata
Tow1of Orfeans 3.56Mw

Town cf Oreans 1.44Mw
Orlaans Special Districis
T). Centrad Schoot 3.56Mw
T.| Central {Library)
County 3.56Mw
Lal. Central Schoal 1440w
County 1.44Mw
Totat Ortears
Total 7.5, Schoal
Total Lat School
Total County
Grand Total
1 12
$2,6820C0.00  §2,503,200.00
$ 2013405  § 2754844
3 5626.81 $ 5.509.89
S S079431 % 4740802
§ 1015886 § $.481.60
e 59

S 3500000
s .
s 561553
s -
s 1477983
H 805,69
s 1014047
s 5590
$ 448061
s 561553
s 1556021
S 559097
S 1463008
5 4142508
k=)
$2.324,40000
S 2696283
5 539257
$  d4p2r3
s 880435
nS

3.56Mw .
S 2492000 5 1006000
" 15
$2,145,60000  § 1,966,800.00
S 2607721 5 2579160
3 S5 5 515832
S 4083545 3 3724948
S 81709 3 T403
bl Ei

=z



Schedule 1

Project inpwts in Yeow

Tolal Project MW AC

Project FMV
Straight Une Dapraciaon Tem

Generation Far Year KWH (From Appraisal $

PPA $MWH (From Appraisat Repart)
NYSERDA Rocanunendation of 3%

Biscount Ra‘e

PILOT Duraton (Years)
Proposed PiLOT Sivw
Yeasty Escafation %

First Year Doctinkng $4w

Depreciated Value (Strafght tina)

Total Yearty Deciining Amount
SIMW AC
NPV

Full Taxslen {Project Lifa)

MW AC
NPV

Tax Abatement

PILOT tpus

Average Tax Abatement Over 15 Yearn

8
$ 4470,000.00
25
10,960.00
s 8370
5 549800
%
5
$ 549909
2%

3 7.000.00
1
$4,470,000.60
S 3500000
S T.000.00

$263,830.34
S 0652550
$ 1730510
$574,679.96
2%
43%

$4,291,200.00

3 3340450

$ 6,680.52

$ 8306448

3 165129
%

QYA Project - Blanchard Road 2

$4,112,400.00

“

$ 3281897
656379

79.603.46
15,920.69

51%

T A R A
] Project Siza FMV No

Project (MW AC inzontives.
SHe1 5 S 4.470.000 00

Stie 2 0 ¥ -

Site 3 ¢ 3 -

Stea [ ] -

e s 0 3 -
Tolal 5 $ 4.470,000.00

= = S

Town of Orleans
Orleans Speciat Distrcts

T 1. Centrat Schaok
Td Central (Library)
Coualy
Yotal Tax Rate
1 H ]
$3.03360000 $3754,800.00 $3.576,000.0¢
$ 3223338 $ 364774 § 31,0623
$ BA46.67 8 632085 S 6,21243
s 7514244 3 7268142 $ 89,220.40
5 1522849 § 14,53628 $ 13,844.08
0% 0 A

$ 1.26627
$ 19082770
$  0isIne
$ 729183
s 19.356%4
7 )
$3.397,200.00  §3.218.400.00
$ 2047651 3 28.830.50
5 809530 S 597818
% 6575038 & 6220836
$ 1315188 § 12459.87
6% 5%

-77-

esiar
0.593079
0.406921
? 10
$3.033,600.00  §2,8€0,200.00
$ 2930528 $ 287119.67
$ 586106 § 574393
3 5683734 S £5,376.32
s 11,767.47 $ 107528
43 418

PILOT Fisst Your

Pro-Rata

Town of Orleans
Orears Spectal Districts

T.I. Centrad School
T Centeal {titrary)
Couaty

Tolat Special Districts

Totat Orfeans
Tota! T, Schoo!
Total Couaty
Grand Tofal
n 12
5268200000  §2503,200.00
S 2613405 § 2754044
S 562681 S 550089
§ 5151530 5 4845428
$ 1038306 5 9.690.86
8 &%

5 3500000
s B
3 681553
s -
% 20,757.77
3 809.58
S 14,242.23
s $,425.20
3 5615.53
S 2158745
5 14,242.23
5 142520
1 u
$2324.400.00  §2.145,600.00
$ 2696283 § B3I
s 539257 3 821544
3 4499326 § 41,532.24
$ 899885 $ 8,365.45
% 2%

$ 1,966,600.00

$ 2579160

5 5,158.32

5 28.071.22

3 761424
%



Schedule 1

Project inputs in Yelow

Tolal Project MW AC 5
Project FMY $ 4.470,060 00
Stragnt Line Depretiation Term 25
Generation Per Yaar KWH (From Appratsl 3 10.950.00
PPA S/MWH {From Appraisal Report) $ 8170
NYSERDA Recammondation of 3% 3 BAsR0
PROT inputs
Discount Rate 8%
PILOT Ducation {Years) 5
Proposad PILOT $w 3 549300
Yearty Escalation % 20%
First Year Dechining $MW K 7 100 s
Yoo !
Depreciated Value (Steaight Line) $4,470,000.00
Total Yearly Oedlining Amount $ 3500000
SMWAC H 7.000.00
NPV 5263,530.84
Full Taxation {Project Life) s 91,188.32
SRAW AC $ 1730690
NPV $574,979.96
Tax Abstement 5%
Average Tax Abatcient Qver 15 Years. 43%

$4,291,200.00

$ 3340458

5 6,680.92

S 83064.48

$ 1661290
5%

$4.112400.00

$ 3281897

3 656379

§ 79,603.46

s 15,920.69
o

Project
Shet
She 2
She 3
Sike 4
v s
Tatal

Town of Clayton
Clayton Special Distncts

T.1. Central School

T.1 Central (Library)
County

$3,933,600.00

$ 22135 5
3 634687 &

w“

76,142.44
$ 1522849

» w

5%

OYA Project - Great Lakes Seaway

Profect Size
{MW) AC

5

aoooo

H
$
H
s
3
$

EMV No
Incentives
4,470,000 00

4,470,060.00

| tas B A

Total Tax Rate

5 3.754.800.00

31.647.74
6.329.55

72581.42
14,536.28

o,

$3,576,000.00

3

“

$ 3106213
521243

69,220.40
13,44.08

3 145443
$ 0.84278
$ 10.62770
3 o1ar4
s 729403
s 20.40008
7 [
$3.397.20000  $3,218,450.00
$ 20476.51 $ 29,890.90
s £095.30 § 5978.18
5 B575938 § 6229838
$ 1315188 § 12,459.67

-78-

RN

PILOT First Yeor
Pro-Rata

Tawn of Ciaylon
Clayton Special Olstricts

T... Central Schoel
- T.l Gentrat (Library)
Py Ceunty
0.075063 Tatai Speciat Districls
0548494 Tofal Claylon
Total T.I. School
0376444 Tatal County
Grand Tofal
[ 10 " 12
$3039600.00 $2,860,80000 $268200000 $2.503200.00
3 2930528 S 28.719.67 S 28,3405 5 27,54844
$ 586106 S 574393 § 562681 S 5,509.69
§ S8BIT34 5 5537632 3 5191530 § 4845428
$ 11,767.47 $ 11,0726 §  10,383.06 3 9,690.86
43% "% us Cn

e

S

5

5

$

$

35.060.00

262720
376722

19,187.28
809.58
13,175.52

457690
630443
20,006.95

13.976.52

39,576.50

2,324,400.00

$ 2696283
53%2.57

5 2,145,600.00

S 26.377.2%

3 5275.44

$ 4153224

3 8,306.45
Yy

£ 1,966,800.00

3 2579160

s 5.152.32

s 3\oTLR2

3 781424
25



JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

AMENDMENT RESOLUTION NUMBER 01.09.2020.02
for MDD, LLC

WHEREAS, by Authorizing Resolution adopted by the governing body of the Jefferson
County Industrial Agency (the “Agency”) on December 5, 2019, the Agency was authorized to
provide certain financial assistance to Oswego Beverage Company LLC (the “Company”) in the
form of exemption from sales taxes, mortgage recording taxes, and real property taxes, and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Authorizing Resolution, this Board has
been informed that although Oswego Beverage Company LLC was the applicant for the
Financial Assistance, title to the real and personal property for which the Financial Assistance
will be provided has and will be taken in the name of an entity related to Oswego Beverage
Company LLC, to wit: MDD LLC, and that Oswego Beverage Company LLC will be not own
but will operate the facility at which the Financial Assistance will be provided, and

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to amend the Authorizing Resolution in order for the
Agency to provide the requested Financial Assistance to MDD LLC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The foregoing recitations are incorporated herein and made a part hereof as if fully set
forth hereafter.

2. The Authorizing Resolution adopted by the governing board of the Agency on
December 5, 2019 is hereby amended by replacing Oswego Beverage Company LLC
with MDD LLC as the defined Company.

3. Except as amended by this resolution the Authorizing Resolution adopted on
December 5, 2019, is hereby ratified and affirmed.

-79-



Wesay - o

pasnoxg - ¥

Jussald - d|

‘Sjejot

|ned ‘“yoaulepp

plemp3 "M ‘goapjlepm

esI “JaljiinH,7

WEeI[IAN ‘uosuyop

uyop ‘sbujuuap

piAeQ ‘9sidAu0D

ololo)o) ool

olojlo|loo) Al o)~

olo|oa|lwlalalale

1aqoy ‘osselly

dag

bny

inf

unp

Aey Jdy ey qe4 uep 29Q

>
o]
Z

120

aweN

Sduepusyy pleogd 0z0z-6102

6986-282 (G1¢€)
L09EL AN ‘UMonB]eAA
008 8YNS ‘BnusAY 3oNgIelS 008
Aousby yuswdojensq |eLysnpu) AUnoy uoslayer



